PETER C.P. THOMPSON, Q.C. Borden Ladner Gervais LLP

T (613) 787-3528 World Exchange Plaza

F (613) 230-8842 100 Queen St., Suite 1100

pthompson@blg.com Ottawa, ON, Canada K1P 149
T (613)237-5160 i
F {13 2308842 Borden Ladner Gervais
blg.com

By electronic filing and by e-mail

November 29, 2010

Kirsten Walli

Board Secretary

Ontario Energy Board

27™ floor — 2300 Yonge Street
Toronto, ON M4P 1E4

Dear Ms Walli,

Union Gas Limited (“Union”)
Motion to Adjourn

Board File No.: EB-2010-0039
Our File No.: 339583-000070

As solicitors for Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters (“CME”), we enclose the Affidavit of
Jack Hughes and a Notice of Cross-Motion in response to the Motion and Affidavit delivered by
counsel for Union November 19, 2010, to adjourn the December 6 and 7, 2010 hearing to a date
to be fixed in late February 2011.

The purpose of the Hughes Affidavit is to identify the items in the record of this proceeding and
others upon which CME relies to oppose Union’s Motion and to support the relief requested in
CME’s Cross-Motion.

We are planning to circulate a written summary of CME’s Points of Argument in connection
with this matter by Wednesday of this week so that the Board and other interested parties will
be aware of the rationale for CME’s position in connection with these Motions.

Hard copies of the material will be provided to you by courier. Please contact me if there are
any questions.

Peter C.P. Thompson, Q

PCTsle

enclosure

c. Mark Kitchen and Chris Ripley (Union)
Crawford Smith (Torys)
EB-2010-0039 Intervenors
Paul Clipsham (CME)

OTT01\4289566\1

Lawyers | Patents & Trademark Agenis



EB-2010-0039

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,
S. 0. 1998, c. 15 (Schedule B);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas

Limited for an Order or Orders amending or varying the rate
or rates charged to customers as of October 1, 2010.

NOTICE OF CROSS-MOTION

CANADIAN MANUFACTURERS & EXPORTERS (“CME”) will make a cross-motion to
the Ontario Energy Board (the “Board”) at the oral hearing of the adjournment motion
brought by Union Gas Limited (“Union”) scheduled for Friday, December 3, 2010, at
9:30 a.m., in the Board’s hearing room on the 25" Floor, 2300 Yonge Street, Toronto.

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: Oral.

THE CROSS-MOTION IS FOR:

1.

An Order directing Union to:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Forthwith clear to ratepayers the credit balance in Account 179-121 of
about $6.4M, plus accrued interest to December 31, 2010 (the “Clearance

Balance”);

Revise the draft rates circulated by Union on or about November 18, 2010,
to reflect the Clearance Balance so that it will be included in the rates the

Board approves for an effective date of January 1, 2011; and

Clear the credit balance énd accrued interest in Account 179-122 as of
December 31, 2010, when Union brings forward its other 2010 deferral

account balances for clearance in 2011;

Costs; and

Such further and other relief as counsel may advise and the Board permits.



THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE:

1.

The outcomes of the continued negotiations between Dawn Gateway Limited
Partnership (“DGLP”) and its committed shippers, and DGLP’s November 15,
2010 Open Season are irrelevant to matters pertaining to the timely clearance, to

ratepayers, of credit balances in deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122

because of:

(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The representations made by DGLP and Union emphasizing that the
issuance, by March 11, 2010, of Board regulatory approvals satisfactory to
DGLP was essential to enable DGLP to meet its obligations to the five (5)
shippers that had made long-term commitments for about 78% of the

capacity of the pipeline, failing which the project would not likely proceed;

The initial agreements between DGLP and its five (5) committed shippers,
ranging in terms between five (5) and ten (10) years, empowering DGLP
to proceed with the project for an in-service date of November 1, 2010,
and entiting DGLP to recover substantial demand charges over the
duration of the long-term agreements that were more than sufficient to
cover the costs DGLP expected to incur to construct the pipeline, including

the cost of acquiring the St. Clair Line from Union;

Confirmation, provided under oath on March 1, 2010, by a representative
of Union and DGLP that, upon DGLP’s acceptance of the Board’s leave to
construct and regulatory framework approvals, as reasonable, the sale of
the St. Clair Line to DGLP was to be treated, for regulatory purposes in
Ontario, as having been completed in March 2010;

The Board’s Decisions and Orders in EB-2008-0411 dated November 27,
2009, and March 2, 2010, unconditionally establishing Union’s ratepayers
as the beneficiaries of deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122;

The Board’'s Decision and Order in EB-2009-0422 dated March 9, 2010,

approving DGLP’s application for leave to construct and for a regulatory



framework on terms and conditions promptly confirmed by DGLP to be

acceptable;

(f) DGLP’s waiver of the conditions precedent in the Purchase and Sale

Agreement unequivocally evidenced by:

(i) Union’s repeated statements that the transaction would be
completed immediately following DGLP’s acceptance of the Board's
Leave to Construct and regulatory framework approvals;

(ii) the sworn evidence provided by DGLP on March 1, 2010; and

(iiiy  its acceptance of the Board's March 9, 2010 approvals as
reasonable;

(9) Union’s confirmation on March 17, 2010, in its 2009 Annual Report that
the conditions precedent relating to the sale of the St. Clair Line to DGLP

had been satisfied;

(h)  Union’s breach of its obligations to its ratepayers by failing to insist that
DGLP complete its purchase of the St. Clair Line in accordance with the

commitments previously made under oath; and

(i) The absence of any conditions in the deferral accounts providing Union

with a right to claim balances therein, under any circumstances.

It would be a waste of time and resources to re-schedule the December 6 and 7,
2010 hearing to await outcomes that are irrelevant to the timely clearance, to

ratepayers, of credit balances in the deferral accounts.

Union’s unequivocal acknowledgments in its November 2, 2010 written
submissions in the Board’'s 2010 Natural Gas Market Review EB-2010-0199 to
the effect that the Dawn Gateway Pipeline project will proceed because of its

strategic importance in maintaining and enhancing liquidity at Dawn.

The absence of any credible evidence to establish that the Dawn Gateway

Pipeline Project is unlikely to proceed.



5. The absence of any genuine issue requiring a hearing with respect to the
contingent claim Union purports to assert to an entitlement to credit balances
recorded in deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122.

6. The prejudice to ratepayers from Union’s inappropriate withholding of credit

balances in the deferral accounts having a present value of approximately $10M.

7. Rules 2.01 and 2.02 of the Board’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, and Rule
20.04(1)(a) of the Rules of Civil Procedure.

8. Such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and the Board permit.

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the hearing of the
cross-motion:

1. The Affidavit of Jack Hughes sworn November 29, 2010;

2. The record in the proceeding; and
3. Such further and other evidence as counsel méy advise and the Board permit.
DATE: November 29, 2010 BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
World Exchange Plaza
1100 — 100 Queen Street
Ottawa, ON K1P 1J9
Peter C.P. Thompson, Q.C.
(613) 237-5160 telephone
(613) 230-8842 facsimile
Counsel for CME
TO: ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD
2300 Yonge Street
27" Floor

Toronto, ON M4P 1E4

Kirsten Walli
(416) 481-1967 telephone
(416) 440-7656 facsimile



AND TO:

AND TO:

OTT01\4284579\1

TORYS LLP

Barristers and Solicitors

3000 — 79 Wellington Street West
Box 270, TD Centre

Toronto, ON M5K 1N2

Crawford Smith
(416) 865-8203 telephone
(416) 865-7380 facsimile

Counsel for Union Gas Limited

All Intervenors
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EB-2010-0039

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S. O.
1998, c. 15 (Schedule B);

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas Limited
for an Order or Orders amending or varying the rate or rates -
charged to customers as of October 1, 2010.

AFFIDAVIT

I, Jack Hughes, of the City of Ottawa, in the Province of Ontario, make oath and say as

follows:

1. | am an associate with Borden Ladner Gervais LLP (“BLG”) in Ottawa, solicitors for
Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters (“CME”), and as such have knowledge of the matters to
which | hereinafter depose. My knowledge is based on information contained in the record of
this proceeding and others before the Ontario Energy Board (the “Board”) pertaining to the

Dawn Gateway Pipeline.

2. This Affidavit identifies, briefly summarizes and provides copies of documents in the
records of these various proceedings that are considered by counsel for CME to be relevant to
the Board’s consideration of the Adjournment Motion brought by Union Gas Limited (“Union”)
dated November 19, 2010, and the relief requested by CME in its Cross-Motion dated
November 29, 2010.

3. There are events and documents not included in the Affidavit of Mark Kitchen of Union
Gas Limited (“Union”) sworn November 19, 2010 (the “Kitchen Affidavit”), that relate to matters
pertaining to the clearance of the credit balances in Deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122. A
chronology of the events, including documents not attached to the Kitchen Affidavit, is as

follows:

(a) On November 27, 2009, the Board released its Decision in EB-2008-0411
granting Union Leave to Sell the St. Clair Transmission Line to Dawn Gateway
Limited Partnership (“DGLP”). The Board’s Decision and Order is attached as
Exhibit ”A” to the Kitchen Affidavit;



(b)

(c)

(e)

On or about December 4, 2009, DGLP withdrew its application filed with the
National Energy Board (“NEB”) for Leave to Construct and other relief with
respect to the proposed Dawn Gateway Pipeline. A copy of DGLP’s December 4,
2009 letter to the NEB is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 1;

On December 23, 2009, DGLP applied to the Ontario Energy Board (the “Board”
or “OEB”) for Leave to Construct a portion of the proposed Dawn Gateway
Pipeline and for approval of a regulatory framework consistent with Group
Number 2 regulation as practiced by the NEB. In its Application, DGLP stated:

“There is a limited time span in which this project may proceed. In
order to meet a proposed in-service date of November 1, 2010, as
contracted by the shippers, the Applicant must order pipe for the
construction of the Bickford-Dawn Pipeline by beginning of March
2010.”

A copy of DGLP’s Application and some excerpts from the supporting pre-filed
evidence are attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 2;

Concurrently, on December 23, 2009, and as required by the Board’s
November 27, 2009 Decision and Order, Union filed its calculation of the
cumulative under-recovery from 2003 to March 1, 2010, being its projected
closing date for the sale of the St. Clair Pipeline to DGLP. A copy of Union’s
letter and calculation is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 3. At

page 3 of this material, Union stated as follows:

“Assuming that the Board grants Leave to Construct the Bickford-
Dawn Pipeline and authorizes a regulatory framework that is
satisfactory to DGLP by February 26, 2010, Union expects to
proceed with the sale of the St. Clair Line to DGLP immediately
thereafter. Accordingly, for the purposes of calculating the
cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line, Union has assumed
that the sale will occur on March 1, 2010.” (emphasis added)

Parties opposite in interest to Union made submissions on Union’s calculations.
CME’s submissions to this effect were made on January 4, 2010, and a copy
thereof is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit4. A question was
raised by CME and others pertaining to the appropriateness of Union’s

transaction date estimate of March 1, 2010;



(h)

On January 15, 2010, Union replied to the submissions made by CME and others
and reiterated that March 1, 2010, was a realistic transaction completion date. A
copy of Union’s letter is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 5;

The hearing of DGLP’s Application for Leave to Construct and approval of a light-
handed regulatory framework commenced on March 1, 2010. At that time,
counsel for CME questioned DGLP witnesses, who were also representatives of
Union, about the regulatory implications of the matters the Board was then
considering pertaining to the transaction date for the sale of the St. Clair Line to
DGLP and the removal of the St. Clair Line from utility Rate Base. Attached to
my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 6 are pages 23 to 31 of the Transcript of the
proceedings before the Board pertaining to the cross-examination of the DGLP
and Union representatives. The Transcript includes the following exchange:

“Mr. Thompson: So that regardless of what happens on the US
side, for regulatory purposes in_Ontario, we can treat this deal as
having been done as of March 2010, assuming you accept what the
Board has ruled on as being reasonable. (emphasis added)

Mr. Baker: That’s correct.”

The Transcript also contains an acknowledgement that on an adjustment date to
be determined by the Board, the Net Book Value (“NBV”) of the St. Clair Line of
approximately $5M would be removed from utility Rafe Base, along with the
related carrying costs and return. The questions posed on this topic concluded

with the following exchange:

“Mr. Thompson: So it is the sum of those numbers, then, that would
be coming out of cost of service annually, whenever this adjustment
takes place; is that fair?

Mr. Baker: That’s correct.”

Other excerpts from the March 1, 2010 Transcript, at pages 14 to 16, and
pages 18 to 21 are attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit7. These
Transcript excerpts describe the maximum amount of $2.5M, over and above the
NBV of the St. Clair Line, that DGLP would be paying to Union to acquire the
St. Clair Line;



(i)

)

On March 2, 2010, the Board rendered its Decision and Order requiring Union to
record a credit of $6.402M in Account 179-121. The Decision describes the
commitment to proceed with the sale of the St. Clair Line immediately following
DGLP’s acceptance of the Leave to Construct and regulatory framework

approvals as reasonable as follows:

“[25] Union estimated that the closing date of the transaction for
the sale of the St. Clair Line will be March 1, 2010 because DGLP
indicated in its December 23 2009 Application, under Board File
No. EB-2009-0422, that it is seeking leave to construct the Bickford
Dawn Pipeline by February 26, 2010 and that the project will not
likely proceed if it does not receive approval by this date. Union also
noted that the hearing in the EB-2009-0422 proceeding is scheduled
for early March, 2010 and Union will proceed with the sale of the
St. Clair_Line_immediately thereafter (assuming that the Board
grants DGLP leave to _construct the Bickford to Dawn Line and
authorizes a_regulatory framework that is satisfactory to DGLP).”
(emphasis added)

The Board’s Decision and Order also required Union to establish a deferral
account to record the impact of removing the St. Clair Line (and related St. Clair
River Crossing) from rates (including all Rate Base and OM&A consequences)
beginning March 1, 2010. A copy of the Board’s March 2, 2010 Decision and
Order is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 8;

Oral submissions were made in the DGLP Leave to Construct and regulatory
framework proceeding on March 2, 2010. Confidential Exhibit X2.1 illustrating
the extent to which revenues under DGLP’s long-term agreements were more
than sufficient to recover the costs DGLP expected to incur to construct the
Dawn Gateway Pipeline, including its costs of acquiring the St. Clair Line from
Union, was filed during argument. Transcript excerpts from March 1, 2010, at
pages 82 to 90 and from the oral argument on March 2, 2010, at pages 27 to 48
are attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 9. A copy of Confidential
Exhibit X2.1 and a confidential schedule distributed by Union on January 15,
2010, pertaining to the costs of constructing the Bickford to Dawn Pipeline will be
made available to the Board at the hearing of CME’s Cross-Motion;

On March 9, 2010, the Board released its Decision and Order approving DGLP’s
Leave to Construct and a light-handed regulatory framework of the type
proposed by DGLP. The Board’s March 9, 2010 Decision and Order is attached



(1)

(m)

(o)

to and marked as Exhibit C to the Kitchen Affidavit. Shortly thereafter, DGLP
confirmed that the approvals the Board had granted were satisfactory;

On March 17, 2010, Union released its 2009 Annual Report. Excerpts from
Union’s 2009 Annual Report pertaining to rate regulation are attached to my
Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 10. The Annual Report confirms that the
conditions precedent to a sale of the St. Clair Line, described in the Board’s

March 2, 2010 Decision, had been satisfied as follows:

“The sale of the St. Clair Line is contingent on DGP receiving OEB
approval to construct a new 17 km section of pipeline from the
eastern end of the St Clair Line to Dawn. The sale is also
contingent on DGP receiving OEB approval for a new light-handed
regulatory framework for the Ontario-based portion of the new
transportation service they propose to offer. In March 2010, a
hearing was held and a decision received from the OEB, approving
both of these items.”

Submissions pertaining to the wording of the Draft Accounting Orders circulated
by Union in response to the Board’s March 2, 2010 Decision were initiated by
Union on March 15, 2010, and responded to by parties opposite in interest to
Union on or about March 25, 2010. Submissions made by CME pertaining to the
wording of the Draft Accounting Orders on March 25, 2010, are attached to my
Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 11;

Union’s reply to submissions made by CME and others was delivered on or
about April 15, 2010, and a copy thereof is attached to my Affidavit and marked
as Exhibit 12;

On or about April 19, 2010, a date after submissions with respect to the wording
of deferral accounts proposed by Union had closed, DGLP wrote to the Board
providing an update on the status of the proposed Dawn Gateway Pipeline.
DGLP’s April 19, 2010 letter advising that it had agreed with its committed
shippers to delay construction of the pipeline is attached to and marked as
Exhibit D to the Kitchen Affidavit;

On April 22, 2010, Union distributed its pre-filed evidence in the EB-2010-0039
proceeding. Excerpts from the pre-filed evidence pertaining to Deferral Accounts
179-121 and 179-122 are attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 13.



(r)

(s)

The evidence contains Union’s proposal to refrain from disposing of credit
balances in Deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122 on the grounds that
changing market conditions had caused a decline in spreads between gas prices
in Michigan compared to Dawn. According to Unior;, the decline in spreads, in
turn, prompted Dawn Gateway and its shippers to delay the commencement of
construction. The pre-filed evidence makes no mention of the acknowledgement
made on March 1, 2010, that the sale of the St. Clair Line transaction is to be
treated as completed, for regulatory purposes, in Ontario, upon DGLP’s
acceptance of the Board’s Leave to Construct and regulatory regime approvals.
In the pre-filed evidence, Union stated as follows:

“If Dawn Gateway does not proceed with the purchase of the
St. Clair Line, Union will file a motion with the Board in EB-2008-
0411 for approval to attribute the amounts in these deferral accounts
back to Union and to continue to recover the costs of the St. Clair
Transmission Line in delivery rates.”

On May 11, 2010, the Board issued its Decision and Order pertaining to the
wording of the Accounting Orders related to the two (2) Deferral Accounts. This
Decision and Order is attached and marked to the Kitchen Affidavit as
Exhibit “B”.

On June 3, 2010, the Board issued the Rate Order that stemmed from its
March 9, 2010 Decision approving a light-handed regulatory framework of the
type proposed by DGLP. A copy of the Board’s Rate Order, excluding the
schedules in Appendix A thereof, is attached to my Affidavit and marked as
Exhibit 14;

On June 28, 2010, Union responded to Interrogatories pertaining to the evidence
it had filed on April 22, 2010. Interrogatory responses to CME marked as
Exhibits B3.12 — pertaining to spreads between Michigan and Dawn; Exhibit
B3.17 — pertaining to communications between DGLP and its shippers; Exhibit
B3.18 — pertaining to any actions taken by Union’s unregulated business under
its contract with DGLP; and Exhibit B3.31 — showing the value of credit balances
in Deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122 are attached to my Affidavit and
marked as Exhibit 15;



(u)

(V)

(w)

The Transcript of the examination by counsel for CME of Union witnesses at the
Technical Conference held on July 9, 2010, is attached to my Affidavit and
marked as Exhibit 16;

A letter pertaining to answers provided by a Union witness during the course of
July 9, 2010 Technical Conference was circulated by Union on July 23, 2010,
and is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 17;

On or about July 27, 2010, the parties to the EB-2010-0039 proceedings entered
into a Settlement Agreement. The Agreement is attached as part of Exhibit "E” to
the Kitchen Affidavit. The Agreement to defer the determination of matters
pertaining to Deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122 to a hearing to be held
between November 29, 2010, and December 31, 2010, was:

“without prejudice to the parties’ position with respect to the proper
determinations concerning the accounts or the appropriateness of
any relief requested in the proposed Application.”

The Settlement Agreement required Union to produce certain documents that it
had previously refused to produce. These documents were produced by Union
in confidence and without prejudice to its position pertaining to relevance and
admissibility and included:

(i) The Precedent Agreements between DGLP and its shippers filed
confidentially in the EB-2008-0411 proceedings;

(ii) Communications, including e-mails between DGLP and its shippers,
pertaining to amendments to the Precedent Agreements aforesaid;

(iii) The Amended Precedent Agreement between DGLP and each of its

shippers, and

(iv)  The Agreement of Purchase and Sale pertaining to the St. Clair Line
between DGLP and Union.

Copies of these confidential documents will be made available to the Board at
the hearing of CME’s Cross-Motion. The total demand-related revenues DGLP



was entitled to receive under these contracts can be derived from the information
contained in the confidential documents.

On November 2, 2010, Union filed its written submission in the Board’s 2010
Natural Gas Market Review conducted under docket EB-2010-0199. A copy of
Union’s submission is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 18. At

page 9 of the submission, Union stated as follows:

“Dawn Gateway Michigan to Dawn Path

To take advantage of the development of the Rockies Express
Pipeline (a new pipeline that brings new supply from the U.S.
Rockies basin to markets in the mid west U.S., Northeast U.S., and
the Great Lakes region in general), and the need for greater access
to emerging shale supply in the Gulf area, and increased access to
Michigan storage, multiple pipeline projects emerged to transport
gas supplies from Michigan to Dawn. New projects were proposed
by TCPL (Dawn Eclipse and Dawn Express), Enbridge (Niagara
Gas Link Pipeline), Vector (an expansion of their existing system),
and Spectra/DTE — Dawn Gateway.

Market participants have chosen to support Dawn Gateway as the

preferred economic and routing option. The Dawn Gateway

Pipeline will link DTE’s Belle River Mills and Dawn. The Dawn

Gateway project was approved by the Board in March of 2010 and is

currently on hold waiting for the market dynamics to provide

additional support. When in service this pipeline will further add to

Dawn liquidity by providing linkages as noted above. Dawn

Gateway will benefit the Ontario natural gas market by adding

additional supply to Dawn at a time of declining WCSB deliveries to

Ontario, and enhancing market liquidity at the Dawn Hub.”
On or about November 9, 2010, Union representatives orally advised certain
intervenor representatives that Union would be proposing to adjourn the
December 6 and 7, 2010, hearing that had been fixed to deal with matters
pertaining to Deferral Accounts 179-121 and 179-122. By letter dated
November 9, 2010, a copy of which is attached to my Affidavit and marked as
Exhibit 19, counsel for CME asked Union to provide a description of the facts
upon which the proposed adjournment would be based so that a determination

could be made as to whether the adjournment proposal makes sense;

On November 15, 2010, Union responded to counsel for CME and a copy of that
letter is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 20;



(cc)

(dd)

SWORN BEFORE ME at the

in the Province %@ﬁ)ario, s 29" day
10.,

of November, /2.

Counsel for CME responded to Union’s letter initially by e-mails on November 18
and the morning of November 19, 2010, that are attached to my Affidavit and
marked as Exhibit 21, and then by letter dated November 19, 2010, a copy of
which is attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 22;

On November 19, 2010, at about 6:41 p.m., an electronic copy of Union’s Notice
of Motion and the Affidavit of Mr. Kitchen in support thereof was distributed to

parties of record in this proceeding;

Counsel for CME sought clarification of certain aspects of the affidavit evidence
provided by Mr. Kitchen and a calculation from Union of the allocation to rate
classes of the credit balance in Account Number 179-121 by letter dated
November 19, 2010, attached to my Affidavit and marked as Exhibit 23; and

Union responded by letter dated November 26, 2010, attached to my Affidavit
and marked as Exhibit 24.

of Ottawa,

A commiss'l“é"ﬁ?"r”ét >
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This is Exhibit 1 to the Affidavit of
Jack Hughes, sworn before me this
27 day of November, 2010.

k‘ ,,,.-«M“‘/
A Commissjbner etc.
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December 4, 2009

Ms. Anne-Marie Erickson
Acting Secretary of the Board
National Energy Board

444 - 7th Avenue SW
Calgary, AB T2P 0X8

Dear Ms. Erickson:

Re: Dawn Gateway Pipeline General Partner Inc. (Dawn Gateway GP)
Application for Dawn Gateway Pipeline dated 6 May 2009
NEB File No. OF-Fac-Gas-D159-2009-01 01
Hearing Order GH-2-2009
Request to Terminate the GH-2-2009 Proceeding

In light of the Ontario Energy Board's ("OEB") decision dated November 27, 2009,
Dawn Gateway GP on behalf of Dawn Gateway Pipeline Limited Partnership ("Dawn
Gateway") has decided to withdraw its applications filed with the National Energy Board.
Accordingly, Dawn Gateway GP respectfully requests the termination of the GH-2-2009
hearing process.

Dawn Gateway's project cannot sustain the cost, uncertainty and delay associated with
the jurisdictional impasse that has arisen as a result of the OEB's ruling in a Union Gas
application to sell a surplus pipeline asset. Dawn Gateway's partners are reviewing that
decision to determine whether a re-structured project might be feasible under provincial
jurisdiction, failing which the project will be abandoned.

Dawn Gateway wishes to express its appreciation to the Board and its staff for the effort

expended in the review of its applications and regrets any inconvenience resulting from
the decision and Dawn Gateway’s withdrawal of its applications.

Yours truly,

G~

Bruce E. Pydee

Director, Dawn Gateway GP

cc: Interested Parties GH-2-2009

Dawn Gateway Pipeline Limited Partnership ¢/o Union Gas Limited
50 Keil Drive North Chatham, ON N7M5M1



This is Exhibit 2 to the Affidavit of
Jack Hughes, sworn before me this
27\ __ day of November, 2010.

A CommissSionérétc.



EB-2009-0422

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.0.
1998, ¢.15, Schedule B, and in particular, s. 90(1) and s. 36(1) thereof:

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Dawn Gateway
Pipeline Limited Partnership (“Dawn Gateway LP™) for an Order or
Orders granting leave to construct a natural gas pipeline and ancillary
facilities in the Townships of St. Clair and Dawn-Euphemia, all in the
County of Lambton, and approving the regulatory framework and the
tariff for the transmission of gas on the Ontario portion of the Dawn
Gateway Pipeline.

DAWN GATEWAY LP

The Applicant, Dawn Gateway LP, hereby applies to the Ontario Energy Board (the
“Board™), for an Order or Orders:

a)

b)

pursuant to section 36(1) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 (the “Act™),
approving the regulatory framework and the Tariff for the Ontario portion of the
Dawn Gateway Pipeline.

pursuant to section 90(1) of the Act, granting leave to construct approximately 17
kilometres of NPS 24 pipeline from the existing Bickford Compressor Station, located
in Lot 6, Concession XI I, Township of St. Clair easterly to the Dawn Compressor
Station, in the Township of Dawn-Euphemia, all in the County of Lambton; and

such further order or orders as Dawn Gateway LP may request and the Board may
deem appropriate or necessary.
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¥ LP is owned Jointly by Spectra Energy Corp. (“Spectra™) and DTE Pipeline
Company (“DTE”) through various affiliates. Spectra and DTE through varjous affiliates
are also equal 50/50 members in Dawn Gateway LLC.

Regulatogr Framework

4. Dawn Gateway LP seeks approval from the Board for the regulatory framework, including
charging tolls at negotiated prices, in accordance with the Tariff to be filed as part of Dawn
_Gateway [p ’s pre~fi i i rt.uﬁth.isﬂappﬁeatio&"rhis approach is wholly
consistent with Group 2 regulation as practiced by the Nationa] Energy Board.

5. ltis intended that the Dawn Gateway Pipeline would be an at-risk pipeline with the owners
assuming all risk for construction and operating costs, and a] risk of uncommitted Capacity

Leave to Construct
===t 10 L onstruct

6. The portion of the proposed pipeline running from the Bickford Compressor Station to the
Dawn Compressor Station (the “Bickford Dawn Pipeline™) has not yet been constructed,
and Dawn Gateway LP seeks leave to construct the Bickford Dawn Pipeline in this
Application. Attached hereto as Schedule ‘A’ is a map showing the general location of the
proposed Bickford Dawn Pipeline and the Municipalities, highways, railways, utility lines
and navigable waters through, under, OVEr, upon or across which the Bickford Dawn
Pipeline wil] pass.

7. The Applicant has prepared an Environmenta| Report for the proposed Bickford Dawn
Pipeline which wi]] be included in the pre-filed evidence.

9. The Applicant is negotiating with the affected landowners to try to reach a settlement
agreement with them. If the Applicant is not able to arrive at a settlement with the
landowners by January 31, 201 0, then the Applicant expects that jt will withdraw this
Application.



10.  Accordingly, the Applicant requests a decision from the Board respecting both the
regulatory framework and the leave to construct portions of this application by no later than
Friday February 26, 2010.

Dated at Toronto, Ontario this 23rd day of December, 2009.

Per:  Sharon Wong
Counsel for Dawn Gateway LP

Comments respecting this Application should be directed to:

Mark Murray Sharon Wong

Manager, Regulatory Projects Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP
Union Gas Limited Barristers & Solicitors

50 Keil Drive North Commerce Court West
Chatham, Ontario 28" Floor, 199 Bay Street
N7M 5M1 Toronto, Ontario

Telephone: 519-436-460] MSL 1A9

Fax: 519-436-4641 Telephone: 416-863-4178
mmurray@spectraencrgy.com Fax: 416-863-2653

sharon.wong@blakes.com
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SECTION 1
PROJECT SUMMARY

Westcoast Energy Inc. (“Spectra”) and DTE Pipeline Company (“DTE”) have formed a
joint venture (“Dawn Gateway”) through their respective affiliates which is proposing to
offer a point-to-point natural gas transmission service, which will commence at the Belle
River Mills Compressor Station in Michigan that is owned by Michigan Consolidated
Gas Company (“MichCon”); and which will terminate at the Dawn Compressor Station
in Ontario owned by Union Gas Limited (“Union”). The proposed pipeline to support
this service (the “Dawn Gateway Pipeline”) is depicted in Section 1 — Schedule 1. The
present applications relate to the Ontario segment of the Dawn Gateway Pipeline
beginning at the middle of the St. Clair River and terminating at Union’s Dawn

Compressor Station (“Dawn”).

This Application arises out of Union’s Application EB-2008-0411 to the Ontario Energy
Board (“Board”) for leave to sell the St. Clair Line. The Board concluded in EB-2008-
0411 that it has jurisdiction over that portion of the proposed Dawn Gateway Pipeline
from the St. Clair Valve to Dawn, and the Board stated in paragraph 4 of its Order in
EB-2008-0411 that submissions could be filed regarding the appropriate regulatory

framework for the proposed Dawn Gateway Pipeline.

As a result of the Board’s Decision and Order in EB-2008-0411, Dawn Gateway
Pipeline Limited Partnership (“Dawn Gateway LP”) has withdrawn its application to the
National Energy Board (“NEB”) for approvals and is bringing this Application to the

Board for approval of a new regulatory framework and also for leave to construct.

Dawn Gateway LP seeks approval from the Board of the regulatory framework (Section
4) for the Ontario portion of the proposed Dawn Gateway Pipeline, including charging
tolls at negotiated rates in accordance with the proposed Tariff which Dawn Gateway LP
1s filing for Board Approval. This approach is based on and consistent with Group 2

regulation as practiced by the NEB.
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Dawn Gateway LP is also secking an order from the Board granting leave to construct
approximately 17 kms of NPS 24 pipeline from the Bickford Compressor Station to the
Dawn Station (the “Bickford Dawn Pipeline”) and ancillary facilities to meet the
transportation service demands identified in Dawn Gateway’s binding open season. A
map showing the location of the proposed pipeline can be found at Section 1 — Schedule

2.

Dawn Gateway LP plans to construct the pipeline during the 2010 construction season

for service to customers effective November 1, 2010.

An Environmental Report (“ER”) and update was prepared for the Bickford Dawn
Pipeline. The concemns of various provincial and municipal agencies and affected
landowners have been solicited and considered in the development of the ER. Dawn
Gateway LP will contract with Union to oversee the construction of the pipeline.
Union’s standard construction procedures combined with the supplemental mitigation
measures recommended in the ER will be employed to address environmental and
landowner concerns. The ER concluded that construction and operation of the pipeline
will have no long-term significant environmental effects. The ER has been provided to
the Ontario Pipeline Coordination Committee (“OPCC”) and other provincial and

municipal agencies.

In order to commit to the materials required to meet the targeted in-service date of
November 1, 2010, approvals to construct the facilities and a satisfactory alternative

regulatory framework, are required by February 26, 2010.
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SECTION 3
NEED FOR THE PROJECT
Introduction
15. The proposed Dawn Gateway Pipeline would provide shippers with a greatly enhanced

connection between Michigan storage and Ontario’s Dawn market hub. The proposed
Dawn Gateway Pipeline would initially have the capacity to transport 360,000 Dthd
(379,876 GJ/d, 10,198 10°m’/d) between MichCon’s Belle River Mills Compressor
Station and Union’s Dawn Hub on a firm basis, and its capacity would be expandable in
the future. The Dawn Gateway Pipeline would also allow shippers enhanced access to
existing and new storage developments in the Great Lakes region, and the ability to
connect and access new sources of supply upstream of the Belle River Mills Compressor
Station. The Dawn Gateway Pipeline would provide a new transportation service that
would allow downstream customers in Ontario and Quebec to access gas supplies from
emerging supply regions like the U.S. Rockies, various U.S. Southeast shale basins and
Gulf Coast LNG. Access to these new sources of supply will improve the depth and
liquidity of the Dawn market hub. The Dawn Gateway Pipeline is completely consistent
with the Board’s decision in the Natural Gas Electricity Interface review, as it supports
both the importance and development of Dawn as a market hub and greater access to

new storage developments.

Binding Open Season Process

16.

DTE and Spectra held a non-binding open season in September/October of 2008 to
determine the level of interest in the services to be provided by the Dawn Gateway
Pipeline. Based on the bids received, DTE and Spectra determined that there is
sufficient interest in the proposed service to justify proceeding with the Dawn Gateway
Pipeline. Subsequently, five shippers entered into binding Precedent Agreements to
subscribe for a total of 280,000 Dthd (295,459 GJ/d, 7,932 10°m’/d) of firm
transportation service on the Dawn Gateway Pipeline (subject to regulatory approval),
thereby demonstrating that there is market support for the new transportation service that
Dawn Gateway is proposing. Any non-contracted capacity will be made available to
shippers through future open seasons or through direct negotiation.
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17. The obligation of Dawn Gateway under the Precedent Agreements to provide the
proposed services is conditional on timely approval of all applications necessary to
complete the entire pipeline path. The Precedent Agreements provide for the execution
of multi-year transportation contracts pursuant to which Dawn Gateway will provide
shippers with gas transportation services between the Belle River Mills Compressor
Station and the Dawn Compressor Station at a fixed price for the entire term of their

respective transportation contracts.

18. The Precedent Agreements are based on Dawn Gateway assuming all project risks,
including construction, exchange rate, operating costs, inflation, credit, un-contracted
capacity, and capacity renewal risks which allows Dawn Gateway to provide shippers
with toll certainty for the term of their agreements. The addition of new shippers or the
loss of existing shippers would have no effect on the existing negotiated tolls or terms.
All the shippers who signed Precedent Agreements have agreed to support the present
Application. The Precedent Agreements with the existing shippers were previously filed
with the Board on a confidential basis as part of EB-2008-0411. There have
subsequently been minor amendments to the Precedent Agreements to reflect the change
from NEB to OEB regulation.

Findings in EB-2008-0411

19. In EB-2008-0411, the Board found that there are clear benefits from the proposed Dawn
Gateway Pipeline:

[58] The Board accepts that there will be benefits from the transaction. There
will be two types of benefits: direct and indirect. The direct benefit is the rate
reduction resulting from removing the asset, which is currently under-utilized,
from ratebase and rates. This benefit is small; the estimated rate impact is less
than $1 per year for residential customers in the Southern Operations Area.

[59] The indirect benefits are more significant and flow from the broader
project, including the expansion of capacity from Bickford to Dawn. These
benefits include enhanced transportation capacity between Michigan storage
and Dawn and enhanced access to supply. These benefits have the potential to
lead to greater liquidity and reduced price volatility at the Dawn Hub. The
proposed Dawn Gateway pipeline would have a capacity of 385,000 GJ/d on a
firm basis, and that capacity could be expanded. Although these indirect
benefits rely on projections, there are already five Precedent Agreements in
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place, thereby demonstrating that the enhanced access is desired by the
marketplace.
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SECTION 6
FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION

This section describes the construction techniques and mitigation procedures that will be
used for the Bickford Dawn Pipeline. Dawn Gateway LP will contract with Union to
oversee construction of the Bickford Dawn Pipeline and maintenance thereafter of the
Ontario portion of Dawn Gateway Pipeline. As a result, the proposed construction

methods will be the same as the construction methods typically used by Union.

Section 6 - Schedule 1 describes the general techniques and methods of construction that
will be employed for the construction of the proposed facilities. It details such activities

as clearing, grading, stringing of pipe, welding, trenching, backfill, tile repair and clean-

up.

Section 6 - Schedule 2, page 1 of 2, provides the overall project schedule. Section 6 -
Schedule 2, page 2 of 2, indicates the proposed schedule for 2010 pipeline construction.
It is anticipated that construction of the proposed pipeline facilities will begin in the
summer (not including clearing) and be completed by October. The proposed
construction schedule takes advantage of the drier summer months thereby minimizing

the impact of construction on agricultural lands and other features such as watercourses.

Dawn Gateway LP needs to receive Board approval by Febstary-26 March 11, 2010 for
an order granting leave to construct the Bickford Dawn Pipeline in order to provide

adequate time to meet the proposed construction schedule in the summer of 2010.

Dawn Gateway LP foresees no issues obtaining material for the project and foresees no
problem in obtaining a contractor to complete the proposed construction so long as it
receives all necessary approvals by February—26 March 11, 2010. If approvals are
obtained after that date, Dawn Gateway LP will be unable to commit to the required pipe

in time to meet the 2010 construction schedule.

Union will oversee the construction of the proposed pipeline in compliance with Union’s

current construction procedures, the environmental mitigation identified in the ER,
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A Speciza Envroy Company
December 23, 2009

Ontario Energy Board
2300 Yonge Street
Suite 2700

Toronto, Ontario
M4P 1E4

Attention: Ms. Kirsten Walli, Board Secretary
Re:  EB-2008-0411 - Calculation of Under-Recovery
Dear Ms. Walli:

On December 23, 2008 Union Gas Limited (“Union”) filed an application with the Ontario
Energy Board (“Board”) secking leave to sell the St. Clair Line to the Dawn Gateway Pipeline
Limited Partnership (“DGLP”).

The Board issued its Decision and Order on November 27, 2009 granting Union leave to sell the
St. Clair Line to DGLP subject to conditions including Union filing the calculation of the
cumulative under-recovery from 2003 to the current time and its estimate as of the closing date
of the transaction.

On December 23, 2009 DGLP filed an application with the Board for approval of a regulatory
framework for the proposed new Dawn Gateway Pipeline as well as leave to construct a pipeline
from Bickford to Dawn to be incorporated into the Dawn Gateway Pipeline.

Given DGLP’s decision to proceed with the project, Union is filing herewith its calculation of
the cumulative under-recovery from 2003 to the end of December 2009 (i.e. the current time)
and its estimate as of March 1, 2010 which is the projected closing date of the transaction
should the project proceed. Union is also requesting approval of a draft accounting order
relating to the

establishment of the deferral account to record the cumulative under-recovery which is
referenced in paragraph 1(b) of the November 27, 2009 Order.

Yours truly,
[original signed by]

Chris Ripley
Manager, Regulatory Applications

cC: EB-2008-0411 Intervenors
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Introduction

On December 23, 2008 Union Gas Limited (“Union”) filed an application with the Ontario
Energy Board (“Board”) seeking an Order of the Board granting leave to sell the St. Clair Line to

the Dawn Gateway Pipeline Limited Partnership (“DGLP”).

On November 27, 2009 the Board issued its Order granting Union leave to sell the St. Clair Line
to DGLP subject to the following conditions:
1.a) The sale price for ratemaking purposes shall be the fair market value which is defined
as the replacement cost of the line.

b) The ratepayers will receive a credit for ratemaking purposes equal to the amount of the
cumulative under-recovery from 2003 until the time of the transaction which shall be
placed in a deferral account for disposition in a rates proceeding.

¢) Union shall file with the Board, with a copy to all intervenors, its calculation of the
cumulative under-recovery from 2003 to the current time and its estimate as of the
closing date of the transaction. Union at its discretion may file its estimate of the

replacement cost of the line.

In accordance with the Board’s Order, Union is filing its calculation of the cumulative under-
recovery from 2003 to the end of December 2009 (i.e. the current time) and its estimate as of
March 1, 2010 which is the projected closing date of the transaction should the project proceed.

Union is also requesting approval of a draft accounting order relating to the establishment of the
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of the Order.

1. Deferral Account

In the Board’s EB-2008-0411 decision dated November 27, 2009, at paragraph 123, the Board

stated:

In accordance with the Board’s Order, Union requests that the Board approve the establishment
of a deferral account by Union if the sale of the St. Clair Line to DGLP proceeds. If the sale

does not proceed, Union will not require a deferral account as there would be no refund of the

“The Board will approve the transaction conditional on the ratepayers
being allocated a portion of the deemed net gain equivalent to the
cumulative under-recovery as of the date of the transaction. The Board
directs Union to file necessary evidence to substantiate the cumulative
under-recovery of the assets since 2003. Given the Board expects the net
gain, calculated as the difference between replacement costs and net book
value, will be well in excess of this cumulative under-recovery, it will not
be necessary for Union to file evidence on the replacement cost, unless it
chooses to do so. The Board will then fix the amount to be allocated to
ratepayers to compensate for the harm arising from the transaction. This
amount will vary depending upon the timing of the actual transaction. The
determination of the relevant amount will be made as part of this
proceeding so as to provide certainty to the parties. A deferral account
will be established to capture the amount of the allocation as of the date of

B

the transaction.’

cumulative under-recovery to customers.
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Union also requests that the Board approve the draft accounting order attached as Appendix A, to
be effective on the date of the sale of the St. Clair Line to DGLP, establishing a deferral account
to record the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line from 2003 until the time of sale.
Union expects to propose the disposition of the deferral account balance in Union’s 2009 non-
commodity deferral account disposition proceeding in 2010, should the St. Clair Line sale

transaction have occurred by that time.

2. Estimated Closing Date of the St. Clair Line Sale

As indicated by DGLP in its December 23, 2009 application, there is a limited time span in
which the project would likely proceed, and DGLP is asking for leave to construct the Bickford
Dawn Pipeline and for approval of an alternate regulatory framework by Friday February 26,

2010.

Assuming that the Board grants leave to construct the Bickford Dawn Pipeline and authorizes a
regulatory framework that is satisfactory to DGLP by February 26, 2010, Union expects to
proceed with the sale of the St. Clair Line to DGLP immediately thereafter. Accordingly, for the
purposes of calculating the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line, Union has assumed

that the sale will occur on March 1, 2010.

3. Cumulative Under-Recovery of the St. Clair Line

Union has calculated the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line as the difference

between estimated net revenue and the estimated actual cost of service. For the period January 1,
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2003 to March 1, 2010, Union estimates the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line will
be $3.951 million. The calculation of the cumulative under-recovery can be found at Appendix
B. The amount of the cumulative under-recovery will form part of Union’s 2009 regulated
carnings for the purpose of calculating any earnings sharing under the incentive regulation

framework.

Estimated net revenue for the St. Clair Line is the actual and forecast revenue associated with
firm and interruptible C1 transportation, net of unaccounted for gas and compressor fuel. This
approach is consistent with the methodology used to determine net revenue in response to
Undertaking No. J1.1 in this proceeding. For the period January 1, 2003 to March 1, 2010, net
revenue of the St. Clair Line is estimated to be $3.542 million. This amount can be found at

Appendix B, Line 1, column (i).

The estimated actual cost of service of the St. Clair Line is the sum of a) return and taxes, b)
depreciation expense and c) operating expenses. For the period January 1, 2003 to March 1,
2010, the estimated actual cost of service of the St. Clair Line is $7.493 million. This amount

can be found at Appendix B, Line 11, column (i).

Return and taxes were calculated using Union’s Board-approved capital structure, rates of return
and actual or forecast tax rates. This approach is consistent with Union’s response to

Undertaking No. J1.2 in this proceeding. For the period January 1, 2003 to March 1, 2010,
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return and taxes on the St. Clair Line are estimated to be $5.232 million. This amount can be

found at Appendix B, Line 5, column (i).

Depreciation expense was calculated using the net depreciated value of the St. Clair Line as
provided in response to FRPO Interrogatory #6 in this proceeding. The calculation is also
consistent with the approach used in response to Undertaking No. J1.1. For the period January 1,
2003 to March 1, 2010, depreciation expense is estimated to be $1.985 million. This amount can

be found at Appendix B, Line 6, column (i).

Union has calculated the operating expenses consistent with the methodology used in
Undertaking No. J1.1, with one exception. The cost of the NEB-regulated St. Clair River
Crossing toll has been removed. Union believes that any cumulative under-recovery amount
payable to customers should be limited to the revenues and costs directly attributable to the St.
Clair Line itself, and should exclude the cost of any upstream pipeline (including the St. Clair
River Crossing). This approach appears to be consistent with the Board’s decision, where they
agreed with intervenors that nothing material has changed (para. 27) and that “the St. Clair Line
is not integral to the St. Clair River Crossing” (para. 47). Accordingly, for the period January 1,
2003 to March 1, 2010, operating expenses are estimated to be $0.276 million. This amount can

be found at Appendix B, Line 10, column (i).

As noted above, Union estimates the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line from

January 1, 2003 to March 1, 2010 will be $3.951 million. The cumulative under-recovery is
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calculated as the difference between estimated net revenue of $3.542 million and an estimated
actual cost of service of $7.493 million. The cumulative under-recovery amount can be found at
Appendix B, Line 12, column (i). As indicated above, the cumulative under-recovery will form

part of Union’s 2009 regulated earnings for the purposes of determining any earnings sharing.
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UNION GAS LIMITED

Accounting Entries for
Cumulative Under-recovery — St. Clair Transmission Line
Deferral Account No. 179-121

Account numbers are from the Uniform System of Accounts for Gas Utilities, Class A prescribed under the Ontario
Energy Board Act.

Debit - Account No. 105
Accumulated Depreciation — Utility Plant

Credit - Account No. 179-121
Cumulative Under-recovery — St. Clair Transmission Line

To record, as a credit in Deferral Account No. 179-121, the cost of removal for the St. Clair Transmission Line
ordered by the Board in EB-2008-0411 to be equal to the amount of cumulative under-recovery of Union’s St. Clair
Pipeline, from 2003 until the time of the sale of the asset, to be refunded to ratepayers.

Debit - Account No. 171
Extraordinary Plant Losses

Credit - Account No. 105
Accumulated Depreciation — Utility Plant

To record, as a debit to Account No. 171, the loss on the sale of the St. Clair transmission line and related assets.
The loss represents the cost of disposition ordered by the Board in EB-2008-0411 that could not have been provided
for previously in the accumulated provision for depreciation.

Debit - Account No. 333
Other Income Deductions

Credit - Account No. 171
Extraordinary Plant Losses

To record, as a debit to Account No. 333, the write-off to operations for the loss on the sale of the St. Clair
transmission line and related assets.

Debit - Account No. 179-121
Other Deferred Charges - Deferred Customer Rebates/Charges

Credit - Account No. 323
Other Interest Expense

To record, as a debit (credit) in Deferral Account No. 179-121, interest on the balance in Deferral Account No.
179-121. Simple interest will be computed monthly on the opening balance in the said account in accordance with
the methodology approved by the Board in EB-2006-0117.
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Borden Ladner Gervais LLP

Lawyers ¢ Patent & Trade-mark Agents
World Exchange Plaza

100 Queen Street, Suite 1100

Ottawa ON K1P 1J9

tel.: (613) 237-5160 fax: (613) 230-8842
January 4, 2010 www.blgcanada.com

_— By electronic filing and by e-mail

pRgv

PETER C.P. THomPSON, Q.C.
direct tel.: (613) 787-3528

BORDEN Kirsten Walli e-mail: pthompson@blgcanada.com

LADNER Board Secretary

GERVAIS Ontario Energy Board

— 2300 Yonge Street
27" floor

Toronto, ON M4P 1E4
Dear Ms Walli,

Union Gas Limited (""Union")

Dawn Gateway Limited Partnership ('""Dawn Gateway LP")
Board File No.: EB-2008-0411

Our File No.: 339583-000036

A. Introduction and Overview

These are the submissions of Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters ("CME") pertaining
to the estimate provided by Union Gas Limited ("Union") on December 23, 2009, of the
Cumulative Under-Recovery since January 1, 2003, related to the St. Clair Line. Union's
estimate is $3.951M as of March 1, 2010.

We also support Mr. Quinn's request for an extension of the deadline for responding to
Union's subsidy burden calculation to Friday, January 8, 2010. We seek the deadline
extension to enable us to liaise with Mr. Quinn for the purpose of preparing and filing by
Friday a Schedule comparable to Appendix B in Union's December 23, 2009 evidence
that will show the corrections that we say are needed to reflect the spirit and intent of the
Board's November 27, 2009 Decision and Order.

For reasons which follow, we submit that Union's estimate is incorrect and materially
low.

1. Summary of Errors in Union's Calculation

The reasons why Union's calculation is incorrect and materially low, each of which is
discussed in further detail below, include the following:

(a) The estimate should be done as of December 31, 2010, and not March 1, 2010, as
Union proposes. By grossing up, for twelve (12) months, Union's Under-
Recovery estimate of $118,000 for the two (2) months ending March 1, 2010, we

WATERLOO REGION

e MONTREAL « OTTAWA <« TORONTO e VANCOUVER =

CALGARY



estimate that the use of a December 31, 2010 calculation date increases Union's
calculation by about $590,000."

(b) Union's exclusion from the subsidy burden absorbed by its ratepayers since
January 1, 2003, of the St. Clair River crossing toll of $342,000 per annum is
incorrect and inappropriate for the reasons described below. These costs are
clearly part of the subsidy burden related to the St. Clair Line as Union
acknowledged in its evidence in this proceeding and, in particular, in Exhibits
J1.1 and J1.2, upon which the Board relied in rendering its November 27, 2009
Decision and Order. Including the St. Clair River crossing toll increases Union's
calculation of $3.951M to March 1, 2010, by $2.451M and by a further $285,000
from March 1, 2010, to December 31, 2010, for a total increase of $2.736M.2

(c) Union's calculation fails to include yearly interest at the Board approved rate
applicable to deferral account balances on the cumulative balances for each of the
years between January 1, 2003, and December 31, 2010. Using an illustrative
simple interest rate of 3% per annum, we estimate that without compounding the
inclusion of interest in the subsidy burden calculation from January 1, 2003, to
December 31, 2010, adds an amount of about $1M to the calculation. We need
Mr. Quinn's input to verify that we have properly estimated the interest amount.

When adjustments are made for the errors in Union's calculation, the portion of the gain
on the sale to be recorded in the deferral account is not $3.951M, as Union proposes, but
an amount of about $8.277M, including interest, or about $7.277M, excluding interest.*

2. Other Ratemaking Consequences to be Considered in Union's Next Rate Case

At the outset, it needs to be emphasized that the amount that the Board is now
determining for recording in the deferral account only pertains to the ratepayers' share of
the gain on the sale of the St. Clair Line to Dawn Gateway Limited Partnership
("DGLP").

In its November 27, 2009, Decision and Order, the Board defines the gain as the
difference between the Net Book Value ("NBV") of the St. Clair Line and its market
value sale price that the Board established at the replacement costs of the pipeline. The
ratemaking consequences for Union's ratepayers of the transfer of the St. Clair River

! To add 10 months to Union's 2010 calculation, one multiplies Union's 2 month Under-Recovery

estimate of $118,000 by 5 for a total of $590,000.
These amounts are extrapolated from Union's Appendix B.
When the information in Union's Appendix B is adjusted to include Union's St. Clair crossing costs
and to reflect 12 months instead of 2 months for 2010, the subsidy burden in 2003 becomes $1.138M and
the cumulative subsidy burden in 2010 is about $7.278M. We estimate the interest amount by applying 3%
to the average of these 2 amounts being $4.208M to produce an annual amount of about $126,000 which
we then multiply by 8 to cover the years 2003 to 2010 inclusive. This gives us a total amount slightly in
excess of $1M.

These numbers reflect the addition of $3.951M (Union's calculation); $.590M for the December 31
date adjustment, $2.736M for St. Clair River crossing toll and $1M for interest, for a total of $8.277M
including interest or $7.277M excluding interest.
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crossing and the St. Clair Line to DGLP in addition to their share of a portion of the gain,
include the removal of the St. Clair Line and related assets from Union's utility Rate Base
and the Cost of Service.

We submit that these other ratemaking consequences are to be determined in a Union
Rate Case. We interpret the last sentence in paragraph 123 of the November 27, 2009
Decision and Order to be a finding to this effect. There, the Board stated as follows:

"Rates can be adjusted at a subsequent rate proceeding."

Union did not include this sentence in the passage it extracted from paragraph 123 of the
Board's Decision and Order of November 27, 2009, which is quoted at page 3 of Union's
Evidence filed on December 23, 2009.

Since Union's 2010 rates have already been set under its five year Incentive Rate Plan
("IRP"), the first Union Rate Case in which these other ratemaking consequences can be
considered will be Union's Application for 2011 Rates.

In its initial pre-filed evidence in this proceeding, Union suggested that these other
ratemaking consequences were limited to the removal of the NBV of the St. Clair Line on
re-basing when Union's five year IRP terminates on December 31, 2012. The Board
referred to this aspect of Union's proposal in paragraph 78 of its November 27, 2009,
Decision and Order.

We wish to emphasize that we disagree with Union's position that these other ratemaking
consequences are not to be considered until re-basing. It is our position that such an
approach is incompatible with the terms of Union's IRP and is unreasonable and unfair.
It is inappropriate for Union's owner to concurrently collect costs associated with the
St. Clair Line and St. Clair River crossing from both Union ratepayers and DGLP
ratepayers.

While we recognize that this is not a matter to be determined now, we wish to make it
clear that we reserve our client's rights to raise the matter in Union's 2011 and 2012 rate
applications. We will raise the matter in the event that Union does not reduce its IRP
rates in each of those years by the net cost reductions that will ensue in each of those
years as a result of the transfer of the St. Clair River crossing and St. Clair Line to DGLP.

These net cost reductions are in an amount of $993,000 in each of those years if one uses
the full year 2010 subsidy burden as the measurement surrogate, or about $1.196M if one
uses the 2007 base year subsidy burden as the measure of those cost reductions.’

The Board recently determined in Union's restructuring application that net cost
reductions of about $1.3M per year during the term of Union's IRP are material and are to
be flowed through to ratepayers.® The materiality of the 2011 and 2012 cost reductions

> These numbers reflect the amounts in Union's Appendix B adjusted to include St. Clair crossing

tolls.
6 EB-2008-0304 Decision and Order dated November 19, 2008.



cannot reasonably be challenged when it is recognized that in combination with the
ratepayer share of the gain, they total between about $9M and $10M using our estimate
of the ratepayer share of the gain at $8.277M, including interest, or $7.277M, excluding
interest.”

3. Implications for 2009 Earnings Sharing

In its December 23, 2009 evidence, Union suggests that the cumulative under-recovery
amount will have implications for 2009 Earnings Sharing. The evidence suggests that
Union plans to deduct the entire amount of the gain to be allocated to ratepayers as an
expense when calculating 2009 Earnings Sharing. If this is what Union plans, then we do
not agree that this is appropriate. However, rather than debating matters pertaining to
2009 Earnings Sharing in this proceeding, we suggest that the implications for 2009
Earnings Sharing, if any, of the final determination in this proceeding of the ratepayers'
share of the gain should be determined in the second quarter of 2010 when Union has
presented its 2009 Earnings Sharing calculation to the Board and interested parties for
their consideration.

4. Regulatory Framework and Leave to Construct Issues

The Board's November 27, 2009 Decision and Order allows a regulatory framework
proposal for DGLP to be made in this the concluding phase of this proceeding. However,
Union has not presented the regulatory framework proposal in its evidence.

Union's December 23, 2009 letter to the Board indicates that DGLP has initiated separate
proceedings with respect to the regulatory framework issue. In those proceedings, DGLP
has requested leave to construct the Bickford to Dawn extension of the St. Clair Line.

DGLP has not yet provided a copy of this Application to us and, as a result, we are, as
yet, unaware of the regulatory framework it proposes.

In these circumstances, we assume that in due course, the Board will require DGLP to
provide parties to this proceeding with notice of its application and that initial comments
on the regulatory framework DGLP proposes will now be made in its application rather
than in this proceeding.

We also assume that the Board will follow its normal processes in responding to DGLP's
application for leave to construct the new Bickford to Dawn pipeline and that in due
course, further directions with respect to pre-hearing discovery and a hearing of matters
pertaining to the relief DGLP seeks will issue.

In these circumstances, we are not planning to make any initial comments in this
proceeding on the regulatory framework DGLP proposes. We expect CME will
intervene in DGLP's application to support construction of the new Bickford to Dawn

7 When you add 2 x $993,000 or 2 x $1.96M to these numbers, you get amounts in the $9M to $10M+
range.



pipeline and to support a regulatory framework which reasonably accommodates the
contracts DGLP has executed with shippers.

B.
1.

(@)

Detailed Rationale for Corrections to Union's Subsidy Burden Calculation

Factual Context for Subsidy Burden Calculation

Date for Subsidy Burden Calculation

In its initial evidence in this proceeding, Union stated that obtaining all of the
requisite regulatory approvals may take several years. The Board referred to this
evidence in paragraph 17 of its November 27, 2009 Decision and Order. On the
basis of this evidence, Union requested and the Board approved the transfer of the
St. Clair Line to DGLP as long as it takes place before December 31, 2013.

In its December 23, 2009 evidence, Union is now suggesting that the requisite
regulatory approvals need to be granted on an immediate basis. This evidence is
incompatible with the initial filing.

The reality is that the sale transaction cannot be completed before DGLP obtains
the regulatory approvals it has requested. In the context of Union's initial
evidence, as well as the processes that need to be followed by the Ontario Energy
Board to respond to DGLP's December 23, 2009 application, we suggest that it is
unrealistic for DGLP and Union to expect all requisite regulatory approvals will
be granted before the end of February 2010.

While CME will likely be supporting DGLP's leave to construct request and a
regulatory framework that allows DGLP to honour the agreements it has already
signed, it is unrealistic to expect that all requisite regulatory approvals will be
granted before sometime in the third quarter of 2010. There may well be
environmental, landowner and other issues that the Board will need to hear and
determine in DGLP's application.

On this ground alone, the date of March 1, 2010, that Union has used in its
calculation is unreasonable and unrealistic.

Moreover, another important fact relevant to a determination of the date to use in
the subsidy burden calculation is that Union's 2010 rates have already been set. In
these circumstances, an adjustment to 2010 rates to reflect a mid-year transfer of
the St. Clair Line and the St. Clair River crossing to DGLP cannot now be made
with ease.

We submit that, in combination, these two facts operate to require the use of a
December 31, 2010 date in the subsidy burden calculation.



(b)

Union's St. Clair Crossing Costs are part of the Subsidy Burden

The St. Clair River crossing connects the integrated system of Michigan
Consolidated Gas Company ("MichCon") to Union's integrated system at the
north westerly end of the St. Clair Line. St. Clair crossing tolls are embedded in
Union's rates and are costs that Union incurs to generate the Rate C1 revenues
that are included in Appendix B to the December 23, 2009 evidence.

In these circumstances, Union's St. Clair crossing tolls are clearly part of the
subsidy burden on its ratepayers related to the St. Clair Line. We submit that
Union's recognized this reality when it submitted its initial evidence in this case,
including Undertaking Response J1.1. The acknowledgement that St. Clair
crossing tolls and/or costs are part of the subsidy burden is reflected in the
heading of Union's response in Exhibit J1.1 which reads:

"2003-2008 Net Revenues and Estimated Operating Costs"

Exhibit J1.1 also included a specific line item for "St. Clair River crossing toll" in
the amount of $342,000 per year.

These costs are not absorbed by the owner of the St. Clair crossing and there is no
reasonable basis for now excluding these costs from the subsidy burden
calculations.

Exhibits J1.1 and J1.2 are St. Clair Pipeline subsidy burden calculations submitted
by Union during the course of the hearing. They cover the period 2003 to 2008
inclusive and do not deal with the years 2009 and 2010. These calculations are
not dependent upon the jurisdictional character of either the St. Clair crossing or
the St. Clair pipeline. The Board's determination that the St. Clair pipeline
remains within provincial jurisdiction does not operate to permit Union to now
materially change the subsidy burden calculations in Exhibits J1.1 and J1.2.

The fact that, in a constitutional sense, the St. Clair Line is not integral to the
St. Clair crossing is irrelevant to the question of whether the St. Clair crossing
tolls are costs incurred by Union to produce the Rate C1 revenues reflected in
Appendix B of its December 23, 2009 evidence. Union's reliance on the Board's
jurisdictional determinations to now attempt to exclude St. Clair crossing costs
from subsidy burden calculation is inappropriate and lacks merit.

We recognize that in paragraph 122 of its November 27, 2009 Decision and
Order, the Board estimated the cumulative subsidy burden at about $5M. While
the manner in which the Board derived its subsidy burden estimate of $5M is not
detailed in the Decision and Order, relevant evidence pertaining to the matter is
contained in Exhibits J1.1 and J1.2. Because these exhibits cover the period 2003
to 2008, we believe that the Board's $5M estimate is for the period January 1,
2003, to December 31, 2008. This belief is reinforced by the Board's reliance on
Exhibit J1.1 in paragraph 83 of the November 27, 2009 Decision and Order to



quantify the cumulative operating cost deficit at about $1.8M. This deficit is for
the period 2003 to 2008 inclusive.

Our belief that the Board's $5M cumulative subsidy burden estimate does not
include 2009 and 2010 subsidy burdens is also corroborated by Union's
Appendix B in its December 23, 2009 evidence which shows the cumulative
subsidy burden at December 31, 2008, at about $5.680M® when St. Clair crossing
costs are included in the subsidy calculation. This amount is higher than the
Board's $5M estimate because Union's calculations in Appendix B include Rate
Base items for working capital and line pack that bring the 2008 Rate Base to
about $5.8M which is higher than the $5.2M NBYV discussed at the hearing and to
which the Board refers in paragraph 78 of its November 27, 2009 Decision and
Order.

We rely on this analysis to make two points. The first is that in rendering its
November 27, 2009 Decision and Order, the Board has relied on Union's evidence
which acknowledges that its St. Clair crossing costs are part of the subsidy
burden. Union cannot now effectively make a material change to that evidence by
eliminating its St. Clair crossing costs as part of the subsidy burden for the
purpose of implementing the Board's Decision and Order of November 27, 2009.
Union is estopped from now resiling from that evidence.

The second is that our calculation of the subsidy burden to December 31, 2010, at
$8.227M including interest and at $7.277M excluding interest is compatible with
the Board's Decision and Order estimate of $5M at the end of 2008 based on
Union's evidence in Exhibits J1.1 and J1.2. In contrast, Union's calculation of the
subsidy to March 1, 2010, at $3.951M is, we submit, at odds with the Board's
$5M estimate based on Exhibits J1.1 and J1.2. Union is seeking approval for a
calculation that is not in accordance with the evidence at the hearing and the
November 27, 2009 Decision and Order based thereon. We urge the Board to
reject Union's post-Decision attempt to benefit its owner by now materially
reducing the subsidy burden calculations submitted during the hearing in Exhibits
J1.1 and J1.2.

We reiterate that Union incurs St. Clair crossing costs to provide Rate C1 service
from St. Clair to Dawn. With a transfer of the St. Clair Line and the St. Clair
crossing to DGLP, the Rate C1 service from St. Clair to Dawn will no longer be
available. This, in and of itself, demonstrates that St. Clair crossing costs are a
part of the subsidy burden. Put another way, Union cannot reasonably expect to
have St. Clair crossing costs remain embedded in its rates after completion of the
sale transaction when the Rate C1 transportation service from St. Clair to Dawn is
no longer available. Yet, this is the effect of what Union is now proposing.

8

This is the cumulative amount in Union's calculation at December 31, 2008, with St. Clair tolls

included.



2. Corrections to Reflect the Use of a December 31, 2010 Calculation Date

We have already noted in Section 1, subparagraph (a) of the Introduction and Overview
Section of this letter that the use of a December 31, 2010 calculation date increases
Union's calculation of $3.951M by $590,000.

3. Corrections to Reflect Inclusion of St. Clair Crossing Costs to December 31, 2010

As earlier noted in Section 1, subparagraph(b) of the Introduction and Overview Section
of this letter including St. Clair crossing costs to March 1, 2010, increases Union's
calculation by $2.451M and by a further $285,000 for the period March 1 to
December 31, 2010, for a total of $2.736M.

4. Rationale for Interest on Yearly Cumulative Balances and Corrections to Include
Interest

We recognize that in its November 27, 2009 Decision and Order, the Board did not
require Union to include interest on the annual cumulative subsidy burden amounts from
January 1, 2003. Nevertheless, we suggest that an interest allowance in each year is
appropriate because Union's owner has enjoyed the use of the subsidy burden money
ratepayers have provided since January 1, 2003.

If the situation were reversed and Union's owner had absorbed part of this subsidy burden
for ten (10) years, then Union would undoubtedly have included an interest component in
any subsidy burden calculation that its owner was authorized to recover from the gain on
the sale of the assets.

For illustrative purposes, we have assumed that the interest rate the Board allows on
deferral account balances in each of the years 2003 to 2010 inclusive is 3%. Under the
assumptions we have used, we calculate the interest rate addition to be about $1IM. We
rely on the Board to apply the correct rate in each year if it agrees with us that an interest
rate addition to the subsidy burden calculation is appropriate. In this regard, CME urges
the Board to apply the prescribed interest rates established pursuant to the methodology
approved in EB-2006-0117 for deferral and variance accounts.

5. Corrected Amount to be Recorded in the Deferral Account

Based on the foregoing, we submit that the subsidy burden from January 1, 2003, to
December 31, 2010, to be recorded in the deferral account is the sum of about $8.277M,
including interest, or about $7.277M, excluding interest.

C. Conclusion

For all of these reasons, we urge the Board to determine that the ratepayers' share of the
gain to be recorded in the deferral account is about $8.277M as of December 31, 2010.

As noted above, our plan is to obtain Mr. Quinn's help in preparing and filing by Friday,
January 8, 2010, a Schedule comparable to Union's Appendix B in its December 23, 2009



evidence to reflect the corrections to Union's calculation that we say are needed to
properly reflect the spirit and intent of the Decision and Order.

We urge the Board to direct Union to present its proposals for clearing the deferral
account and for addressing the other ratemaking consequences of a transfer of the
St. Clair Line and the St. Clair crossing to DGLP in its application for 2011 rates. Any
attempt by Union to avoid adjusting its 2011 and 2012 rates for cost reductions associated
with these transfers to DGLP can be addressed at that time.

Any implications for 2009 Earnings Sharing should be addressed later when Union seeks
Board approval for its 2009 Earnings Sharing Mechanism ("ESM") calculations.

D. Costs

We request that CME be awarded its reasonably incurred costs of participating in this
phase of this proceeding.

Please contact us if there are any questions about the manner in which we derived the
correction amounts described in this letter.

Yours very truly,

Peter C.P. Thompson, Q.C.

PCT\sle

c. Sharon Wong (Blakes)
All Intervenors EB-2008-0411
Paul Clipsham (CME)
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A Spectra Energy Company
January 15, 2010

Ms. Kirsten Walli

Board Secretary

Ontario Energy Board

2300 Yonge Street, 27" Floor
Toronto, Ontario M4P 1E4

Dear Ms. Walli:

Re: EB-2008-0411 — Calculation of Under-Recovery
Union’s Reply Submission

Please find attached Union’s Reply in the above-noted proceeding. A confidential
Schedule has been filed under separate cover and couriered to the Board and to the

Intervenors who executed the Declaration and Undertaking.

Yours truly,
[Original signed by]
Chris Ripley

Manager, Regulatory Applications

c.c..  EB-2008-0411 Intervenors
Sharon Wong, Blakes

Attach.

CR/la

P. 0. Box 2001, 50 Keil Drive North, Chatham, ON, N7M 5M1 www.uniongas.com
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EB-2008-0411

Union Gas Reply —
Under Recovery

Page 1 of 8
Introduction

This is the Reply of Union Gas Limited (“Union”) to the submissions filed by Board Staff,
Canadian Manufacturer & Exporters (“CME”) and Federation of Rental-Housing Providers of
Ontario (“FRPO”) regarding the calculation of the cumulative under-recovery from 2003 to the

current time and Union’s estimate as of the closing date of the transaction.

1. Date of Transaction

If the sale of the St. Clair Pipeline actually occurs, Union estimates that the closing date of the
sale to Dawn Gateway Pipeline Limited Partnership (“DGLP”’) would most likely be on or about

March 1, 2010.

DGLP filed an Application for Leave to Construct the Bickford Dawn Line and for approval of
the regulatory framework for the Dawn Gateway Pipeline on December 23, 2009. In that
Application, DGLP stated that there is a limited time window in which the project would likely
proceed, and DGLP asked the Board to issue a decision by Friday February 26, 2010. Although
the date for a decision requested by DGLP is sooner than would normally be expected, since it is
unlikely that the transaction will proceed if DGLP does not receive approval in the requested
time frame, the estimated closing date of Maréh 1, 2010 is the most realistic date. Thérefore, it is
this date that should be used for any regulatory calculations associated with the sale of the St.

Clair Pipeline.
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2. Interest

The Board’s decision did not direct Union to include interest in the calculation of the cumulative
under-recovery. It was appropriate for the Board to exclude interest prior to the establishment of

the deferral account as there is no principled reason why such interest should be included.

There is no basis at all for CME’s speculation that Union would be seeking interest if
circumstances were reversed. Mr. Thompson on behalf of CME could provide no example of
Union requesting interest be included in a deferral account prior to the establishment of a
deferral account approved by the Board. The normal treatment for a deferral account is that

interest does not accrue until it has been approved by the Board.

The investment in the St. Clair Pipeline was made in 1988 with the approval of the Board, and no
one alleges that the investment was imprudent or the facilities were not used or useful. Union
only earned an approved rate of return on the approved utility investment. Union’s evidence in
the 1988 proceeding for leave to construct the St. Clair Pipeline indicated that the incremental
construction costs of the St. Clair Pipeline would be more than recouped in savings on gas costs
in less than 2 years after construction. No party has disputed this. From the time of
construction to the time of the eventual sale of the regulated utility asset (assuming a sale
occurs), Union will have only received a fair return on an investment that benefited ratepayers
and was made in the public interest. In these circumstances, there is no reason why the Board’s

Decision should be implemented retroactively by requiring Union to pay interest on returns it
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carned in the past since 2003. To include past interest would amount to retroactive ratemaking,

an approach that has been consistently rejected by the Board.

According to paragraph 92 of the Board’s Decision, the cumulative under-recovery amount is
intended to compensate for the harm that the ratepayers may suffer in the future if the sale of the
St. Clair Pipeline takes place. The ratepayers have suffered no compensable harm in the past.
According to the Board’s Decision, the harm to ratepayers takes place in the future, after the St.
Clair Pipeline is sold, because of the “inability of ratepayers to recoup the cumulative past
subsidy since 2003 through future revenues” which Union might have earned if it retained
ownership of the St. Clair Pipeline. Because the harm that is being compensated for is meant to
address a future impact after the time of the sale, there is no basis for applying interest prior to

the sale.

3. St. Clair River Crossing

In paragraphs 122 and 123 of the Board’s November 27, 2009 Decision and Order therein (the
“Decision”), the Board directed Union to calculate an amount equivalent to the cumulative
under-recovery “of the asset”. The asset is the St. Clair Pipeline itself, and does not include the
St. Clair River Crossing which is owned by St. Clair Pipelines LP. Accordingly, Union submits
that the cumulative under-recovery amount related to the St. Clair Pipeline should be limited to
the revenues and costs directly attributable to the St. Clair Pipeline itself, and should exclude the

cost of the St. Clair River Crossing which is not part of the asset.
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In addition, as noted above, the St. Clair River Crossing was constructed to provide security and
diversity of supply to Ontario, a role that it has played since construction and will continue to

play regardless of the ownership of the St. Clair Pipeline.

4. Other Considerations - Cost of Building Replacement Line

In paragraph 121 of the Decision, the Board estimated that the total deemed net gain on the sale
by Union would be approximately $8 to $13 million based on the Board’s estimate that the cost

of the most economical replacement line would be in the range of $13 to $18 million.'

In paragraph 122 of the Decision, the Board estimated that the amount of the deemed net gain to
be allocated to the ratepayers would be approximately $5 million which the Board further

estimated to be in the range of 35% to 65% of the total deemed net gain of $8 to $13 million.

Union estimates that the actual cost of the most economical alternative to the purchase of the St.
Clair Pipeline is approximately $11.4 million which is less than the Board’s initial estimates.
The most economic alternative to the purchase of the St. Clair Pipeline would not be to build a
replacement for the St. Clair Pipeline. If Dawn Gateway did not have the use of the St. Clair
Pipeline, the most economic alternative would be to build a new pipeline directly from the St.
Clair River to Dawn on a direct path, rather than the proposed indirect route which utilizes the

existing St. Clair Pipeline and the proposed new Bickford to Dawn line.

"' To arrive at the deemed net gain, the Board apparently subtracted the Net Book Value of the St. Clair
Pipeline from the cost of the most economical replacement line.
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Accordingly, the cost of the most economic alternative to the use of the St. Clair Pipeline is
equal to the difference between the cost of a direct pipeline from the St. Clair River to Dawn and

the cost of the proposed Bickford to Dawn Pipeline.

At the hearing, Union filed Confidential Undertaking X 1.1 which contained a general estimate
of pipeline construction costs to build Bickford to Dawn as of June 30, 2009. Union is filing a
confidential Schedule with this Reply regarding the estimated the costs of constructing the most
economical alternative to the St. Clair Pipeline. This Schedule contains the most up to date

evidence regarding pipeline construction costs.

With the cost of the most economic alternative estimated at $11.4 million, the deemed net gain
on the sale using the method set out in the Board’s decision is $6.2 million (being $11.4 million
less the NBV of $5.2 million). In its December 23, 2009 submission, Union estimated the
cumulative under-recovery to be $3.951 million, which would represent approximately 64% of
the deemed net gain from the sale and which is at the upper end of the 35% to 65% range

identified by the Board in its decision.

Board Staff, CME and FRPO are requesting changes to the method for calculating the
cumulative under-recovery which would result in the amount of the allocation to ratepayers
incrpasing to somewhere in the range of $6.577 million plus interest (Board Staff submission, p.
3) to $8.1 million (FRPO submission, Appendix A). If the Board set the allocation at the levels

requested by Board Staff, CME and FRPO it would allocate more than 100% of the deemed gain
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to the ratepayers, making this route more expensive than DGLP’s alternative. Union submits

that there is no precedent for allocating more than the deemed gain to the ratepayers.

The Board estimated that only about 35% to 65% of the deemed gain would be allocated to
ratepayers, and invited Union to submit evidence if the deemed net gain was not in fact going to
be well in excess of the cumulative under-recovery to the ratepayers (Decision, para. 123).

Based on these statements, Union believes that the Board did not intend to allocate the entire
deemed gain to the ratepayers, and certainly did not intend to allocate more than the deemed gain

to the ratepayers.

In the Board’s Interpretive Guidance to the Affiliate Relationships Code for Gas Utilities, issued

on December 9, 2004, the Board advised that in the normal course gains from the disposition of a

utility asset to an affiliate would be shared 50/50 between ratepayers and utility shareholders:
The final disposition of a capital gain or loss on the sale of utility assets to an
affiliate will be dealt with at the subsequent rate hearing. In order to provide
stakeholders guidance, the Board will generally expect that any capital gains or
losses on the transfer of utility assets to an affiliate should be shared 50/50

between ratepayers and utility shareholders. Panels on rates cases will determine
if there are exceptional circumstances justifying different treatment.

(at p. 2 of the Interpretive Guidance)

Although DGLP and Union are not affiliates subject to the Affiliate Relationships Code, Union
submits that, at a minimum, the Board should apply these same principles in this case with
respect to the sharing of the gains from a sale and that there are no exceptional circumstances

which justify allocating all of the deemed net gain to the ratepayers. In fact, the circumstances
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suggest that the allocation should be closer to the normal allocation of 50% because the

allocation is intended to compensate ratepayers for the loss of the possibility to recoup some of
the under-recovery in the future if Union were to retain ownership of the St. Clair Pipeline, but
there is no certainty that the ratepayers would recoup all (or even any) of the under-recovery in

the future if the sale does not occur.

5. Implications for 2009 Earnings Sharing

CME and FRPO have taken issue with Union’s intention to include the amount of the cumulative
under-recovery in Union’s 2009 regulated earnings for the purposes of earnings sharing. Union
believes that the amount allocated to ratepayers should be treated as a reduction to its regulated
utility earnings, however Union agrees with FRPO and CME that the matters should be
determined at its next rate case where the Board will have the benefit of full submissions from all

interested parties.

Conclusion

Union therefore requests that the Board accept the estimated amount of the cumulative under-
recovery of $3.951 million as calculated by Union in its December 23, 2009 submission. The
alternative cost of replacing the St. Clair Pipeline is approximately $11.4 million which is $6.2
million in excess of the net book value of $5.2 million. Union’s cumulative under-recovery
calculation of $3.951 million represents 64% of the $6.2 million and is consistent with the 35%
to 65% range identified by the Board in its decision and aligns with prior Board decisions related

to the sharing of gains on the disposition of utility assets. Union further requests that the Board
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1 approve the draft accounting order relating to the establishment of the deferral account as set out

2 in Appendix A to Union’s December 23, 2009 submission.
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MR. ISHERWOOD: Something like that. That's fair.
Yes.

MR. THOMPSON: Will you take that subject to check?

MR. ISHERWOOD: That's fair.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. So is that the toll that Dawn
Gateway is going to pay?

MR. ISHERWOOD: Still to be negotiated, actually.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, what does that mean? It could be
higher or lower?

MR. ISHERWOOD: It could be higher, it could be lower.

MR. THOMPSON: Why would it be higher?

MR. ISHERWOOD: It is being negotiated between St.
Clair pipeline and Dawn Gateway.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, that is not a very tough
negotiation, is it? I mean you are all friends. Why would
it be higher than the toll?

MR. ISHERWOOD: It is more likely to be the same or
lower, to be fair.

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you. Now, the St. Clair line,
the plan is to own that and acquire it from Union.

In the debate that is going on about how much
ratepayers should get, Union, as I understand it, is taking
the position this transaction, the purchase transaction is
going to be completed in March of 2010. Is that correct?

MR. BAKER: That's fair.

MR. THOMPSON: And so if you get, in this case, the
approval for the leave to construct Bickford, the Bickford

to Dawn, is the purchase a "go"? Or are there some other

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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things hanging out there that you need?

MR. BAKER: I think in total, we need certainty on all
aspects of this application. So it would be leave to
construct the Bickford to Dawn piece. Iﬁ would be a
decision in this application on approval for the form of
regulation that we're seeking, along with any conditions,
as well as the Board's final decision in the leave to sell
the St. Clair line on the final ratepayer harm amount as
well.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. Well, let's just explore
that a little bit.

Let's just take the ratepayer harm issue. Your
proposal is 4 million, I think I am as high as eight. A
major component of the differential is whether the St.
Clair toll is in or out of the subsidy calculation. Would
you agree with that?

MR. BAKER: That's my understanding, ves.

MR. THOMPSON: Are you the man I should be speaking to
about this?

MR. BAKER: I guess it depends what you're going to
ask.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, the -- with the St. Clair toll
and the subsidy calculation, your number becomes, give or
take, $6.5 million, there is then a dispute about interest.
And our number goes higher because we factor in z-factor
implications in considering the completion date.

But assume the number is $6.5 million, is it a go or

is it not a go-?

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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MR. BAKER: I just don't think I can answer that
question fully today, because there are still, as I said,
this is not just a matter of one decision. There is a
number of things that are at play here that we would need
to have all of them to decide whether we're going forward
on the project.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. Assume you get a decision
on March 10th that says the number is $6.5 million, what
happens then? Are we then waiting for you folks to come
back to us?

MR. BAKER: Well, it would be -- we realize the fact
that we're going to have to make a fairly quick decision
here because of the time frame that we're under, to hit a
2010 in-service date. So it would need to be practically a
pretty quick turnaround, incorporating all of the decisions
that this Board will need to make.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Well, in the interrogatory
responses to Board Staff, I don't know that I have the
number right at hand. You do mention the ordering of the
pipe and this point you were mentioning in-chief about the
March 11lth date. Let me just see if I can find that.

Can you help me with the interrogatory, where that is
discussed?

MR. BAKER: I will try.

MS. WONG: Are you just looking for the interrogatory
talking about the ordering of the pipe?

MR. THOMPSON: Yes. And the renegotiation of the

cancellation date. 28? It is Board Staff No. 28.

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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So this is Exhibit K1.10, interrogatory 28. Do you
have that, Mr. Baker?

MR. BAKER: Yes, we do.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. It says here in sub (c) that:
"Approval is requested by March 11. Pipe has
been ordered and Dawn Gateway has obtained an
extension of the no cost cancellation to
accommodate the above date."

When was that extension obtained?

MR. ISHERWOOD: The initial pipe order was placed
early January, and in that order we had an out, a no-cost
out until I think February 26th, if I remember correctly.

We had asked the Board initially for a decision by
about the same time. When we saw the hearing schedule,
hearing on March lst, we went back to the pipe company and
asked for an extension as long as we possibly could and
they gave us until February 1llth -- or, sorry, March 1lth.

MR. THOMPSON: So at the time you requested that
extension, the debate as to whether it is four or eight was
out in the open and on the table?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: So you made that request for an
extension, knowing that you were exposed to as much as
$8 million?

MR. BAKER: That's right.

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you. All right. So do I
understand correctly, then, that if you get what you are

asking from this Board, it is a go? The deal closes on

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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March 11th in terms of acquiring the St. Clair line?

MR. BAKER: Again, I am trying to be clear. We
need -- there is really, you know, a number of things at
play. There is the Board's final decision on the amount of
the ratepayer harm. There is the Board's decision in this
case on the regulatory framework and the leave to
construct.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. But my question is: If you
get a result from this Board along the lines of what you
are asking for, then the sale will be completed by March
11th?

MR. BAKER: I guess what I'm saying is that for the
sale to be completed means that we have made a decision in
total, based on all of the decisions of this Board, that
the project will proceed.

And so it won't just be a decision in this case. aAs I
said, it does -- it will also take into account the
decision in the St. Clair leave to construct application.

MR. THOMPSON: I appreciate that. So I guess maybe I
should say, when the St. Clair leave to construct
application decisions are rendered and the decisions in
this case are rendered, are we done in terms of what you
are waiting for-?

MR. BAKER: Yes, we are. We will have everything that
we need to make a decision.

MR. THOMPSON: So that regardless of what happens on
the US side, for regulatory purposes in Ontario we can

treat this deal as having been done as of March 2009,

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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assuming you accept what the Board has ruled on as being
reasonable?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: And so if something goes wrong on the
US side -- 1is there any prospect of that?

MR. BAKER: Sorry, could you just repeat that? I
didn't hear.

MR. THOMPSON: If something goes wrong on the US side
-- the US issues, based on some information you have
provided again in interrogatories, are not going to be
resolved until the third quarter of 2010, as I understand
it.

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. But regardless of what happens
over there, as I understand it, here in Ontario for
regulatory purposes we can -- ratepayers can treat the St.
Clair line as having been disposed of to Dawn Gateway and
they will be entitled to, if you folks approve the -- or if
you don't crater the deal on what the Board decides, the
amount they're entitled to will go into the deferral
account. This is the amount over and above net book value?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. So if -- I just want to
understand the regulatory implications of that for Union
customers, if I may; that is, the deal being treated for
regulatory purposes as having been completed in March 2010.

Am I correct that rate base will be reduced by

$5 million? That is the net book value of the St. Clair
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line? That's Union's rate base?

MR. BAKER: I believe that is what is contemplated to
happen.

MR. THOMPSON: Are we correct that in addition to
the --

MR. BAKER: I should say that -- and I am trying to
remember. I seem to remember that there was some
discussion in terms of when that adjustment to rate base
would happen, and, I apologize, but I just can't remember
where all of the positions on that ended up.

So I will have to check that at break and get back to
you, if that is any different.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Well, I think what you are
getting at, you are in the midst of an IRM regime, and I
think your initial evidence said, We are not going to
rebase until 2013. And certainly my client is saying this
is a Z factor type of issue.

So I take your point that when this happens may be a
debate?

MR. BAKER: That's right.

MR. THOMPSON: But let's just focus on what happens
when it happens, okay-?

So the rate base amount will be reduced by
approximately $5 million, and the return in taxes on and
depreciation on rate base will come out of cost of
service --

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: -- when this happens, when 1t is

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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brought into account?

MR. BAKER: Yes.

MR. THOMPSON: In addition, there will be the 0&M
expenses and property tax expenses that will come out when
this is accounted for?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Now, can we just confirm for the

record, in this case, that the total of those amounts based

on, I think it is, Exhibit J1.1 in the 0411 case, the St.
Clair River crossing toll is one item. Would you take,
subject to check, that is $342,000?

MR. BAKER: Yes, we will accept that.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Then for operating, maintenance,

insurance, property taxes, capital taxes, would you take,
subject to check, that that is almost $150,0007

MR. BAKER: Sorry, that was $150,000°?

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, 150, roughly.

MR. BAKER: I will take that subject to check.

MR. THOMPSON: It is probably a little bit less than
that, but that is the ballpark.

Would you take, subject to check, the depreciation
amount is about $276,0007?

MR. BAKER: I believe you are referring to monthly
amounts. Oh, no, those are annual amounts. You are
correct.

MR. THOMPSON: It is annual?

MR. BAKER: No, you are correct. It is annual.

MR. THOMPSON: I was just taking these numbers off

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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Jl.1.

MR. BAKER: Yes. We have the schedule now.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay.

Then in terms of the return on taxes amount, would you
take, subject to check, it is about $564,000? That is not
in J1.1. That is coming out of a calculation that is
linked to the rate base. It is a number I think you
provided in your evidence in a calculation phase.

MR. BAKER: That sounds about right, ves.

MR. THOMPSON: So it is the sum of those numbers,
then, that would be coming out of cost of service annually,
whenever this adjustment takes place; is that fair-?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Thanks. Okay, let's move, then, from
that to your regulatory framework proposal. And it was
pointed out in opening this morning that this has evolved
somewhat since you initially filed the evidence in this
proceeding.

In other words, it was initially NEB group 2
equivalency with confidentiality and no STAR compliance, as
I understood it?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Now it is NEB group 2 equivalency with
STAR compliance?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: And that change has occurred during the
course of the discovery process?

MR. BAKER: I think it has changed on that time frame,

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
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ratepayers, Union is capturing and separating its costs
related to the development of Dawn Gateway in a manner
consistent with the costs associated with Union's
unregulated storage business.

It is felt that -- while it is felt that these issues
are really specific to Union Gas and its regulatory process
and not Dawn GateWay specifically, we do understand from
Board Staff that there was an interest in this matter and,
as such, as Ms. Wong mentioned, that's why we have Mr.
Tuckwell here this morning with us.

Second, in terms of the storage and transportation
access rules, or STARs, again, as was covered this morning,
our initial application was based on the premise that the
STAR would not apply. However, as noted in various
interrogatory responses, we are no longer now seeking to be
exempted from the STAR.

In terms of financial statements, again, we had
proposed to file those confidentially with the Board
initially and we have updated our evidence to commit to
file those publicly with this Board, consistent with what
group 2 pipelines do under the NEB.

In terms of the Dawn Gateway agreements that were
marked this morning, while Dawn Gateway is still in the
process of developing the project and the agreements, we
did file the two agreements that were referenced this
morning, the first being the development agreement, which
really governs the development and the construction of the

new Bickford to Dawn pipeline, and the second one being the
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field services agreement, which governs the ongoing
maintenance and operation of the Ontario portion of the
Dawn Gateway pipeline.

In terms of the development agreement, there are two
fees contained within that -- within that agreement related
to services and payments that Dawn Gateway will make to
Union Gas.

The first fee is a two-and-a-half-million-dollar
management fee, and this fee is specifically related to the
Board's decision in the St. Clair leave to sell application
and really reflects a negotiated settlement between Dawn
Gateway and Union Gas.

So in the St. Clair leave to sell decision, the Board
ruled that Union would be required to allocate an amount to
ratepayers to mitigate the harm associated with the sale of
the St. Clair line, and while the Board has not yet ruled
on that specific amount or what the final allocation will
be, we know that Union asked the allocation to be set at
around 3.9 million and intervenors had different numbers
that they were proposing.

But I guess the salient point for this morning is the
two-and-a-half-million-dollar management fee contained in
the development agreement is the amount that Dawn Gateway
will fund to partially compensate Union for the amount that
it will ultimately have to allocate to its ratepayers, and
it reflects the maximum amount that Dawn Gateway is
prepared to accept as a project cost.

To the extent that that ultimate amount is greater
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than the two-and-a-half million, it will not flow to the
Dawn Gateway partnership. It will be -- that difference in
amount will remain with Union Gas.

The second fee is a $700,000 success fee, and this is
tied to Union Gas managing and constructing the project
within the agreed-to capital budget for Dawn Gateway. And
this fee is contingent on the successful completion of the
project within the capital budget.

Lastly, as was also mentioned, we are seeking a
decision from the Board inclusive of any conditions that
may flow from this proceeding on, or preferably before,
March 1lth. And as mentioned, this timing is really
related to the fact that we have ordered the pipeline for
Dawn Gateway and we have the ability to cancel that
pipeline order, up to and including by March 1lth, without
incurring any penalties.

To the extent that we were unable to get a decision by
the March 1l1th date, Dawn Gateway would be in a position
where we would be unable to commit to the pipeline and,
therefore, unable to meet the targeted November 1, 2010 in-
service date.

That concludes my comments. Thank you.

MS. WONG: That is the entire examination-in-chief,
sir.

MR. KAISER: Mr. Baker, you referred to the code of
conduct.

MR. BAKER: Yes.

MR. KAISER: And, in particular, you referred to the
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CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. THOMPSON:

MR. THOMPSON: Just on a couple of points, Mr. Baker.
In your evidence-in-chief, the 2.5 management fee that you
described, is that -- as I understand it, that relates to
the amount that the Board is considering that Union has to
pay to ratepayers over and above the net book value of the
St. Clair line.

Have I got that straight-?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: And there is an unresolved debate
before the Board. You take the view, I think, the number
is around $4 million and others have it as high as
$8 million; is that fair-?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. And so the -- whatever that
amount is determined to be, Dawn Gateway is going to pay
2.5 million of that sum?

MR. BAKER: To Union Gas, that's right.

MR. THOMPSON: To Union Gas. And how is that going t
be accounted for in Dawn Gateway? Is that a one-time
operating cost? Is it a capital cost?

MR. BAKER: That would form part of the capital cost
of the project.

MR. THOMPSON: Right. Thanks.

So from Dawn Gateway's perspective, the capital cost

18
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of the St. Clair line would be its net book value of in the

order of $5 million?

MR. BAKER: That's right.
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MR. THOMPSON: Plus this 2.5, for a total of
$7.5 million?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Thanks. Then the success fee that Dawn
Gateway 1is going to pay to Union; do I understand that
correctly?

MR. BAKER: That's right.

MR. THOMPSON: Is that up to $700,000°?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: So could you just help us with what
Union has to do to get it?

MR. BAKER: What Union has to do is manage the project
within the targeted capital cost contained in the
development agreement. To the extent that we don't do
that, if the project comes in over that targeted budget,
then there will be no amount paid.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. And, again, in terms of the
accounting for that within Dawn Gateway, is that a capital
item or a one-time operating expense item? Can you help me
there?

MR. BAKER: That would be part of the capital cost.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. Thanks.

Then in terms of the total capital cost to Dawn
Gateway of the project over and above these amounts would
be the construction cost of the Bickford to Dawn segment?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: And there are numbers in the record in

confidence with respect to that aspect of the matter. Do
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those numbers need to continue to be held in confidence for
the purposes of this case?

MR. BAKER: Yes.

MS. WONG: I should point out, Mr. Thompson, I believe
those numbers were only filed in the St. Clair case. So if
you want them to be filed confidentially in this case,
perhaps we should make arrangements to do so.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. I was hoping we could just refer
to them as having been filed in a prior case, but you want
me to actually identify documents in the St. Clair case
that we would bring into this case?

MS. WONG: I think that might be best, just so that
we're all on the same page. And if we are going to talk
about it, because the filings were confidential, I would
request that that portion of the evidence also be
confidential if you are going to get into the numbers.

MR. KAISER: Our view of it, I believe, is that we had
adopted the record in that case for the purpose of this
case.

MS. WONG: I wasn't aware of that, sir, but are you
adopting the entire record?

MR. KAISER: Well, for the sake of efficiency. Is
there a problem with that?

MS. WONG: Well, Dawn Gateway had requested that the
portions that -- to be adopted would be identified just so
that we are all clear on what is going in. But if the
Board's view is that everything goes in...

MR. KAISER: We only did that for purpose of
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efficiency, without spending time going through it. Is
there any problem with adopting the records of that case
for the purpose of this case?

MS. WONG: No, that's fine.

MR. KAISER: Let's proceed on that basis.

MR. THOMPSON: Thanks.

Okay, so, let me then move back to my planned cross.

First of all, just a few questions on the structure of
the arrangement now. Initially when you filed -- when
Union filed the application, the evidence as I recall it,
was that Dawn Gateway, the limited partnership, was going
to buy the three segments, three existing segments, the
Belle River segments, the St. Clair crossing and the St.
Clair line.

Just stopping there, was that the initial vision, as
you recall it, when the application was filed?

MR. BAKER: I think the only -- I believe the only
difference was that at the time we were contemplating
either a purchase or a lease on the Belle River Mills line.
We had not made a determination at that time.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. And then I recall that in the
evidence in the Union application, the decision to lease
Belle River had been made. So the purchase had been ruled
out and my recollection is you had a long-term lease in
mind, because of some tax benefits on the US side.

MR. BAKER: That's right. A long-term lease with an
option to purchase at some future date.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. Now, is that still the plan
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DECISION AND ORDER

Introduction

1] On November 27, 2009 the Board issued a Decision granting Union Gas Limited
(“Union”) leave to sell 11.7 kilometers of 24 inch diameter steel natural gas pipeline
running between the St. Clair Valve Site and the Bickford Compressor Site in the
Township of St. Clair (the “St. Clair Line”)'. The Decision was subject to the following
conditions:

' November 27, 2009 — EB-2008-0411
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a) The sale price for ratemaking purposes shall be the fair market value which is
defined as the replacement cost of the line.

b) The ratepayer will receive a credit for ratemaking purposes equal to the amount
of the cumulative under-recovery from 2003 until the time of the transaction
which amount shall be placed in a deferral account for disposition in a rates
proceeding.

c) Union shall file with the Board, with a copy to all intervenors, its calculation of the
cumulative under-recovery from 2003 to the current time and its estimate as of
the closing date of the transaction. Union at its discretion may file its estimate of
the replacement cost of the line.

[2] This Decision determines the fair market value of the St. Clair Line, the
cumulative under-recovery, and the appropriate amount to be credited to ratepayers.

[3] The Board received written submissions from Board staff, Union, Canadian
Manufacturers and Exporters (“CME”), and the Federation of Rental-housing Providers
of Ontario (“FRPQO”). Additional evidence regarding the replacement cost was received
in confidence.

The Transaction

(4] Union has proposed to sell the St. Clair Line to Dawn Gateway LP, a limited
partnership owned jointly by Spectra Energy Corp. (“Spectra”) and DTE Pipeline
Company (“DTE”) through various affiliates. Union is a subsidiary of Spectra.

[5] Spectra and DTE have formed a joint venture to develop a 34 km pipeline (the
“Dawn Gateway Pipeline”) that will commence at the Belle River Mills storage facility in
Michigan, owned by a DTE subsidiary, Michigan Consolidated Gas Company
(“Michcon”), and will terminate at the Dawn Compressor Site in Ontario owned by
Union.

[6] When the transactions are completed, the Dawn Gateway pipeline will have four
components. The first three components are existing pipelines. The last component is
a new pipeline to be constructed by the joint venture.
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[7] The first component is a 4.74 km pipeline owned by Michcon which runs from the
Belle River Mills compressor station in St. Clair County, Michigan, to the international
border between the United States and Canada in the middle of the St. Clair River.
Known as the Belle River Mills Pipeline, this pipeline is currently regulated by the
Michigan Public Service Commission. As part of this transaction this pipeline will be
leased to Dawn Gateway Pipeline LLC.

(8] The second component of the Dawn Gateway Line is .873 km of pipe presently
owned by St. Clair Pipelines LP which commences at the international border between
the United States and Canada in the St. Clair River and terminates at Union’s St. Clair
valve site in Lambton County, Ontario. Known as the St. Clair River Crossing, this line
is currently regulated by the NEB. St. Clair Pipelines LP is owned by Westcoast Energy
Inc. (which is a subsidiary of Spectra).

[9] The third component is the St. Clair Line, which is the subject of this proceeding.
The St. Clair Line is currently regulated by the Ontario Energy Board.

[10] The last component of the Dawn Gateway Line is a proposed new 17 km pipeline
running from the St. Clair Line near Union’s Bickford station to the Dawn Compressor
Station in Lambton County, Ontario.

The Fair Market Value of the St. Clair Line

[11] Inits November 27, 2009 Decision, the Board stated that the sale price of the St.
Clair Line, for ratemaking purposes, shall be the fair market value which was defined as
the replacement cost of the line. The Board directed that the replacement cost of the
St. Clair Line is the cost of the most economical alternative to purchasing the St. Clair
Line.

[12]  Union argued that if DGLP does not purchase the St. Clair Line, then the most
economical way for DGLP to transport gas from the St. Clair River to Dawn would be for
DGLP to build a new pipeline directly between these two points. Union stated that the
replacement cost of the St. Clair Pipeline is equal to the difference between the cost of
a hypothetical direct pipeline from the St. Clair River to Dawn and the cost of the
proposed Bickford to Dawn Pipeline.
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[13] Union filed, in confidence, its most recent estimate of the costs to construct the
Bickford to Dawn Pipeline.? Union utilized these pipeline construction costs to estimate
the cost of the most economical alternative to the St. Clair Line. Union estimated that
the cost of the most economic alternative to purchasing the St. Clair Line (or in other
words, the replacement value) is $11.4 million. This replacement value results in a
deemed net gain on the sale of the St. Clair Line of approximately $6.2 million.>

[14] CME and FRPO submitted that there was a threshold concern related to the
inability of intervenors to test all elements of the updated pipeline construction costs that
Union provided in its confidential filing. The updated cost estimate is significantly lower
than the estimate that Union provided during the hearing for the construction of the
Bickford to Dawn Pipeline. CME and FRPO requested that the Board strike the
evidence related to the updated estimated cost of replacing the St. Clair Line from the
record. The Board instead allowed parties to make further submissions on the updated
evidence.

[15] CME and FRPO argued that the updated pipeline construction cost estimate
used by Union does not accurately reflect the land-related costs involved in constructing
a direct route pipeline from the St. Clair River to Dawn because neither Union nor DGLP
currently have any rights or interests over the property affected. FRPO noted that the
proposed Bickford to Dawn Pipeline will run through previously acquired easements and
therefore the land, easement and consultant costs used in the Bickford to Dawn direct
route cost estimate do not reflect all of the relevant costs. FRPO concluded that
including these costs would substantially increase the estimated pipeline construction
costs.

[16] Board staff, CME, and FRPO also submitted that Union’s methodology for
calculating the estimated replacement cost of the St. Clair Line is incorrect. CME and
FRPO argued that the direct pipeline option proposed by Union to estimate the
replacement cost of the St. Clair Line should include the cost of the consequential write-
off by Union of the $5.2 million Net Book Value (“NBV”) of the no longer useful St. Clair
Line.

% This was an update to the estimate of pipeline construction costs filed by Union in Confidential
Undertaking X1.1.

% $11.4M - $5.2M (Net Book Value of the St. Clair Line) = $6.2M
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[17] CME asserted that DGLP has two options to transport gas from the St. Clair
River to Dawn:

a) Purchase the 11.7 km St. Clair Line and construct a 17 km pipeline from Bickford
to Dawn; or

b) Construct a shorter direct line from the St. Clair River to Dawn with the
accompanying write-off for Union of the NBV of the St. Clair Line.

[18] Board staff, CME, and FRPO submitted that the “Proportional Approach” is the
appropriate methodology to follow to determine the replacement cost of the St. Clair
Line. In the Proportional Approach, the proportion of the St. Clair Line to the total
pipeline is determined. That proportion is then applied to the total cost of the direct
route pipeline to determine the replacement cost of the St. Clair Line. Using this
approach results in a significantly higher replacement cost and therefore a significantly
higher deemed net gain.

[19] Union argued that the Proportional Approach is completely hypothetical. Union
noted that a real purchaser would never use the Proportional Approach to make a
rational decision as to whether to buy the St. Clair Line because the result has no
relevance to whether or not it would be less expensive to build a pipeline on an
alternative route.

Board Findings

[20] The Board finds that Union’s methodology for calculating the estimated
replacement cost of the St. Clair Line is appropriate and in accordance with the
principles the Board set out in its Decision. The Board notes that the estimate provided
by Union reflects the costs of an actual economic alternative to using the St. Clair Line
while the estimate proposed by Board staff, CME, and FRPO is hypothetical in nature.

[21] The Board finds that the appropriate pipeline construction cost estimate to be
used in the calculation of the estimated replacement cost of the St. Clair Line is the cost
estimate originally provided by Union in Confidential Undertaking X1.1 as this cost
estimate represents the information available to the parties closer to the time when the
commercial parameters of the transaction were established and therefore more closely
matches the value at that time. Although the date of the transaction is some time in the
future, the commercial aspects of the transaction have already been established. Costs
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of construction may fluctuate further between now and the time of actual construction;
however the Board concludes that the value is appropriately fixed at the time the
commercial parameters were established, or close to that time. Using the original cost
estimate in the calculation of the replacement cost of the St. Clair Line the Board finds
that the estimated replacement cost is $13.17 million and the net gain is $7.97 million.*

The Cumulative Under-Recovery of the St. Clair Line

[22] Inits Decision, the Board concluded that the sale of the St. Clair Line would be
approved on the condition that ratepayers are allocated a portion of the deemed net
gain equivalent to the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line. The Board
directed Union to file the necessary evidence to substantiate the cumulative under-
recovery of the asset since 2003 until the estimated closing date of the transaction.

[23] Union estimated that for the period January 1, 2003 to March 1, 2010 the
cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line will be $3.951 million. Union calculated
the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line as the difference between estimated
net revenue and estimated actual cost of service.

[24] Board staff, CME and FRPO submitted that Union’s estimate is incorrect and
does not reflect the actual cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line. Board staff,
CME and FRPO challenged three aspects of Union’s estimate: the transaction date, the
interest calculation, and the St. Clair River Crossing tolls.

The Transaction Date

[25] Union estimated that the closing date of the transaction for the sale of the St.
Clair Line will be March 1, 2010 because DGLP indicated in its December 23, 2009
Application, under Board File No. EB-2009-0422, that it is seeking leave to construct the
Bickford Dawn Pipeline by February 26, 2010 and that the project will not likely proceed
if it does not receive approval by this date. Union also noted that the hearing in the EB-
2009-0422 proceeding is scheduled for early March, 2010 and Union will proceed with
the sale of the St. Clair Line immediately thereafter (assuming that the Board grants
DGLP leave to construct the Bickford to Dawn Line and authorizes a regulatory
framework that is satisfactory to DGLP).

4$13.17M - $5.2M (NBV of St. Clair Line) = $7.97M



Ontario Energy Board
-7 -

[26] Board staff, CME and FRPO disputed Union’s estimated transaction date. CME
and FRPO argued that Union’s estimated transaction date of March 1, 2010 is based on
Union’s presumption that the transaction will not proceed if DGLP does not receive
approval of its leave to construct the Bickford Dawn Pipeline in the requested time
frame. Both parties submitted that this statement is incompatible with Union’s initial
filing where Union stated that it may take several years to obtain all the requisite
regulatory approvals to put the Dawn Gateway pipeline into service.

[27] CME and FRPO claimed that Union’s 2010 rates have already been set and
there is no evidence that the St. Clair Line will not continue to under-recover until the
Dawn Gateway Pipeline is put in service. Therefore, CME and FRPO believe that the
most equitable date for the purposes of calculating the cumulative under-recovery is
December 31, 2010.

[28] Board staff submitted that Union’s estimated transaction date is unrealistic and
noted that the Board has established metric dates for the release of Board Decision for
both written and oral hearings. The metric schedule for a leave to construct application
requires the Board to issue a Decision within 130 calendar days of the date the
application was filed when a written proceeding is held and 210 days if it is an oral
proceeding. Board staff submitted that for the purpose of establishing a timeframe for
the EB-2009-0422 proceeding, the shortest expected date for a decision should be 130
days. This means that the earliest assumed date for a Decision in that proceeding
should be early May 2010. Therefore, Board staff submitted that the estimate of the
cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line should be made as of May 1, 2010.

Interest Expenses

[29] Board staff, CME and FRPO all argued that Union did not include interest
carrying charges in its estimate of the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line.
All three parties suggested that in order to accurately calculate the cumulative under-
recovery of the St. Clair Line, interest must be included in the calculation.

[30] CME and FRPO submitted that interest should be included in the calculation of
the cumulative under-recovery because Union’s owner has enjoyed the use of subsidy
burden money that ratepayers have provided to the St. Clair Line since 2003. Both
parties noted that if the situation were reversed and Union’s owner had absorbed part of
this subsidy burden, Union would have included an interest component in any subsidy
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burden calculation that its owner was authorized to recover from the gain on the sale of
assets.

[31] Board staff stated that interest charges must be applied to the cumulative under-
recovery balances to ensure that ratepayers recover the full value, which includes the
time value of money, of the subsidy that they have been providing to the St. Clair Line
since 2003. Board staff submitted that Union should apply the Board approved
Accounting Interest Rate Methodology as set out in the Board’s letter of November 28,
2006, under Board File No. EB-2006-0117, to the cumulative under-recovery of the St.
Clair Line for the period January 1, 2003 to May 1, 2010.

[32] Inits reply submission Union noted that the Board’s November 27, 2009 Decision
did not direct Union to include interest in the calculation of the cumulative under-
recovery. Union stated that there is no basis for the intervenors’ speculation that Union
would be seeking interest if the circumstances were reversed. Union noted that the
intervenors could provide no example of Union requesting interest be included in a
deferral account prior to the establishment of a deferral account approved by the Board.
Union noted that the normal treatment for a deferral account is that interest does not
accrue until it has been approved by the Board.

[33] Union noted that the investment in the St. Clair Line was made in 1988 with the
approval of the Board, and no one has alleged that the investment was imprudent or the
facilities were not used or useful. Union stated that from the time of construction to the
time of the eventual sale of the regulated utility asset (assuming a sale occurs) Union
will have only received a fair return on an investment that benefited ratepayers and was
made in the public interest. Union believes that in these circumstances, there is no
reason why the Board’s Decision should be implemented retroactively by requiring
Union to pay interest on returns it earned in the past.

[34] Union also noted that paragraph 92 of the Board’s Decision states that the
cumulative under-recovery amount is intended to compensate for the harm that the
ratepayers may suffer in the future if the sale of the St. Clair Line takes place. Union
submitted that considering the harm that is being compensated for is meant to address
a future impact after the time of the sale, there is no basis for applying interest prior to
the sale.
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[35] Inits final reply submission, CME stated that Union’s reply submission implies
that CME relies on the Board’s creation of a deferral account for the recording of the
ratepayer’s share of compensation to justify the claim for interest. CME submitted that
this is incorrect and that the creation of a deferral account is not the rationale for the
interest claim. Rather, it is the method that the Board adopted for determining
compensation that is the principled basis for the claim. In CME’s view, the Board has
determined that ratepayers are to be compensated for the St. Clair Line subsidy burden
they have paid since January 1, 2003. CME noted that the past subsidy burden
payment should attract pre-judgment interest in the same way that the prior payment of
any other out-of-pocket expenses attract pre-judgment interest.

St. Clair River Crossing Tolls

[37] Union did not include the cost of the NEB-regulated St. Clair River Crossing toll
in its calculation of the cumulative under-recovery. Union stated that any cumulative
under-recovery amount payable to customers should be limited to the revenues and
costs directly attributable to the St. Clair Line itself, and exclude the cost of any
upstream pipeline (including the St. Clair River Crossing).

[38] Board staff, CME and FRPO all submitted that this is incorrect and the St. Clair
River Crossing toll for the period 2003 to the closing date of the transaction should be
included in the calculation of the cumulative under-recovery.

[39] Board staff, CME and FRPO noted that Union had initially acknowledged in its
evidence in this proceeding® that St. Clair River Crossing tolls are operating expenses
related to the St. Clair Line.

[40] CME and FRPO stated that the Board, in rendering its November 27, 2009
Decision, relied on Union’s original evidence which included the St. Clair River Crossing
costs as part of the subsidy burden calculation. CME and FRPO submitted that Union
cannot now effectively make a material change to the evidence by eliminating the St.
Clair Crossing costs from the subsidy burden estimate for the purpose of implementing
the Board’s November 27, 2009 Decision and Order.

® See Exhibit J1.1
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[41] Board staff, CME and FRPO also noted that the St. Clair River Crossing costs
are clearly attributable to the St. Clair Line as the St. Clair Crossing tolls are embedded
in Union’s rates and are costs that Union incurs to generate revenues on the St. Clair
Line.

[42] Inits reply submission, Union reiterated its position that the Board directed Union
to calculate an amount equivalent to the cumulative under-recovery of the asset. Union
believes that the asset is the St. Clair Line itself, and does not include the St. Clair River
Crossing which is owned by St. Clair Pipelines LP. Therefore, Union believes that the
cumulative under-recovery amount related to the St. Clair Line should be limited to the
revenues and costs directly attributable to the St. Clair Line, and should exclude the
cost of the St. Clair River Crossing which is not part of the asset.

Final Positions of the Parties

[43] Union estimated that for the period January 1, 2003 to March 1, 2010 the
cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line will be $3.951 million. This estimate
assumes a transaction date of March 1, 2010, no interest applied to the balances of the
cumulative under-recovery, and the exclusion of costs related to the St. Clair River
Crossing.

[44] Board staff estimated that for the period January 1, 2003 to May 1, 2010 the
cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line will be $6.577 million plus interest. This
estimate assumes a transaction date of May 1, 2010, interest applied to the balances of
the cumulative under-recovery, and the inclusion of costs related to the St. Clair River
Crossing.

[45] CME and FRPO estimated that for the period January 1, 2003 to December 31,
2010 the cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line will be $8.101 million (including
interest). This estimate assumes a transaction date of December 31, 2010, interest
applied to the balances of the cumulative under-recovery, and the inclusion of costs
related to the St. Clair River Crossing.

Board Findings

[46] The Board finds that the March 1, 2010 transaction date proposed by Union is
appropriate for purposes of determining the cumulative under-recovery, because the
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Board will also establish a mechanism whereby the St. Clair Line will be effectively
removed from rate base and rates (via deferral account) as of the same date.

[47] The Board finds that Union’s exclusion of interest in its estimate of the cumulative
under-recovery of the St. Clair Line is appropriate. The Board did not address interest
carrying charges in its November 27, 2009 Decision and did not envision the inclusion
of interest in the calculation.

[48] The Board finds that Union’s exclusion of the costs related to the St. Clair River
Crossing is inappropriate. The St. Clair River Crossing toll should be included in the
estimate of the under-recovery of the St. Clair Line as the St. Clair Crossing tolls are
embedded in Union’s rates and are costs that Union incurs to generate revenues on the
St. Clair Line through the provision of service under Rate C1. In addition, these costs
were included in the original Union estimate of the level of subsidy provided as evidence
in the proceeding.

[49] The Board’s Decision increases the estimate of the under-recovery of the St.
Clair Line from $3.951 million to $6.402 million.® The under-recovery amount of $6.402
million means the ratepayers are allocated approximately 80.32%’ of the deemed net
gain of the sale of the St. Clair Line.

Removal of Assets from Rate Base

[50] CME and FRPO argued that there are other ratemaking consequences related to
the sale of the St. Clair Line. There is the issue of removing the St. Clair Line assets
from Union’s utility rate base and Cost of Service.

[51] The parties agree that the net book value of the St. Clair Line should be removed
from rate base, the question is when. Union takes the position it should be removed
after Union’s 5-year IRP ends on December 31, 2012. CME and FRPO say the amount
should be removed as of December 31, 2010 and reflected in Union’s 2011 rates.

€ $3.951M (Union’s estimate of the under-recovery of the St. Clair Line) + $2.451M (St. Clair River
Crossing tolls January 1, 2003 — March 1, 2010)

7 $6.402M (estimated cumulative under-recovery of the St. Clair Line) / $7.97M (deemed net gain)
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Board Findings

[52] The Board finds that the net book value and associated expenses should be
removed from rate base and rates as of March 1, 2010, so as to coincide with the
deemed transaction date. The Board directs that the reduction in the revenue
requirement going forward from that date will be captured in a deferral account for later
disposition to ratepayers. The underlying rates will also be adjusted in due course.

2009 Earnings Sharing

[53]  Union argued that the amount of the cumulative under-recovery should be
considered in calculating Union’s 2009 regulated earnings for the purpose of calculating
any earnings sharing under the incentive regulation framework. CME and FRPO
argued that the Board has decided to compensate ratepayers for harm by allocating
ratepayers a portion of the deemed net gain. Union’s proposal infers that the
ratepayers’ portion of the net gain would serve to reduce the earnings sharing available
to ratepayers for the 2009 period. CME and FRPO submitted that for Union to recover
part of the deemed harm by having ratepayers co-fund the compensation in the
earnings sharing proceeding would be unfair and contrary to the intent of the Board'’s
decision. They request that the Board reject Union’s proposition that the amount of gain
allocated to ratepayers can be treated as a reduction to regulated earnings for the
purposes of earnings sharing. CME and FRPO requested that the Board address this
issue in the current proceeding.

[54] Union’s response to CME and FRPO is that the EB-2009-0101 Settlement
Agreement in respect of Union’s Incentive Rate mechanism, approved by the Board on
June 8, 2009, provides that Union may include in the earnings sharing calculation those
expenses that would be allowable as deductions from earnings in a cost of service
application. On this basis, Union argues that any allocation to ratepayers in respect of
the cumulative under-recovery is an allowable expense in the earnings sharing
calculation. Union stated that this matter should be determined in its next earnings
sharing proceeding.

Board Findings

[55] The Board finds that these issues are appropriately addressed in the relevant
Union rates proceeding. The Board notes that Union intends to address this issue in its



Ontario Energy Board
-13-

upcoming application, which it expects to make on or about March 31, 2010 and that
intervenors in that proceeding will be able to test the related evidence and make
submissions.

Deferral Accounts
[56] The Board finds it appropriate to establish the following deferral accounts.

1) Union will establish a deferral account to record the amount of $6.402 million,
which represents the ratepayers’ share of the deemed net gain on disposition of
the utility asset as compensation for harm as a result of the transaction. The
amount recorded in the deferral account will attract interest carrying charges
based on the Board’s approved methodology until the time of disposition. The
Board directs Union to file a Draft Accounting Order as presented in Appendix A
of its December 23, 2009 Submission.

2) Union will establish a deferral account which will capture the effect of removing
the St. Clair Line (and related St. Clair River Crossing) from rates (including all
rate base and OM&A consequences, including return) beginning March 1, 2010 .
The amounts recorded in the deferral account will attract interest carrying
charges based on the Board’s approved methodology until the time of
disposition. Union shall file a Draft Accounting Order that reflects the Board’s
Decision.

Cost Awards

[57] Due to the length of this proceeding, the Board adopted a two-phase cost award
process. (1) costs incurred up to and including November 30, 2009; (2) costs incurred
from December 1, 2009 until the conclusion of the proceeding.

[58] The phased cost award process was available to all intervenors determined to be
eligible for cost awards. Eligible intervenors had the option of requesting cost claims for
each phase of the proceeding or making a single cost claim for the entire proceeding in
Phase 2 of the cost award process.

[59] Cost claims, and any objections to the cost claims, for Phase 2 of the proceeding
shall be made in the timeframe set out below.
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Note that when determining the amount of the cost awards, the Board will apply

the principles set out in section 5 of the Board’s Practice Direction on Cost Awards. The
maximum hourly rates set out in the Board’s Cost Awards Tariff will also be applied.

THEREFORE THE BOARD ORDERS THAT:

1)

The deemed sale price of the St. Clair Line for ratemaking purposes shall be
$13.17M. The deemed net gain on sale of the St. Clair Line shall be $7.97
million.

Union’s ratepayers shall be allocated $6.402 million of the deemed net gain on
the sale of the St. Clair Line.

Union shall file the following with the Board and forward a copy to all intervenors
by March 15, 2010:

a) the Draft Accounting Order which was filed as Appendix A to Union’s
December 23, 2009 Submission; and

b) a Draft Accounting Order reflecting the Board’s Decision to establish a
deferral account to record the impact of removing the St. Clair Line (and
related St. Clair River Crossing) from rates (including all rate base and OM&A
consequences) beginning March 1, 2010.

Board staff and intervenors wishing to make comments on Union’s Draft
Accounting Orders may do so by filing such submissions with the Board
Secretary and serving a copy on Union by April 1, 2010.

Union shall file reply to any comments received by filing such replies with the
Board Secretary and serving a copy on all parties by April 15, 2010.

Intervenors shall file with the Board and forward their respective cost claims for
Phase 2 of the proceeding by April 30, 2010.

Union shall file with the Board and forward to the applicable intervenor any
objections to the claimed costs by May 14, 2010.



Ontario Energy Board
-15-

8) The applicable intervenor shall file with the Board and forward to Union any
responses to any objections for cost claims by May 28, 2010.

9) Allfilings to the Board must quote the file number, EB-2008-0411, be made
through the Board’s web portal at www.errr.oeb.gov.on.ca, and consist of two
paper copies and one electronic copy in searchable / unrestricted PDF format.
Filings must clearly state the sender's name, postal address and telephone
number, fax number and email address. Please use the document naming
conventions and document submission standards outlined in the RESS
Document Guideline found at www.oeb.gov.on.ca. If the web portal is not
available you may email your document to the address below. Those who do not
have internet access are required to submit all filings on a CD or diskette in PDF
format, along with two paper copies. Those who do not have computer access
are required to file 7 paper copies. All communications should be directed to the
attention of the Board Secretary office at BoardSec@oeb.gov.on.ca, and be
received no later than 4:45 p.m. on the required date.

DATED at Toronto, March 2, 2010.

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Original signed by

Kirsten Walli
Board Secretary
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we were talking about earlier.

So the financial -- we can get the revenues from --
confidentially from doing the math on these contracts.
Right? |

MR. BAKER: Correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Then in terms of the costs, then, that
we are trying to measure, we have the -- in my illustrative
example, I used $35 million of costs using the three items
we know about and the one that is confidential, just making
an assumption. Right? Are you with me so far?

MR. BAKER: Yes.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Then in terms of the -- so the
return on that amount in a utility return calculation,
based on the assumptions that we presented, would be
assumed 40 percent equity, and we then apply 9.75 percent
to -- multiplying 40 times my illustrative 35? That would
be the equity cost at a utility return level?

MR. BAKER: I am following you.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Then we take 60 percent of that
number, and that would be the debt component, and apply
6 percent to that. That would be the debt cost; is that
correct?

MR. BAKER: Correct.

MR. THOMPSON: There would be a tax add-on to the
utility component. Is 30 percent tax rate in the ballpark?
MR. BAKER: I think it is roughly in the ballpark.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. And we then have depreciation.

And in the Exhibit J1.1, the rate being used would appear
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to be about 5 percent. Is that the rate that has been used
in this calculation, in number 57?

MR. BAKER: I am not sure. That sounds about right.
I think it is reasonable.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, subject to check -- would you let
me know if it is inappropriate to use 4 percent?

MR. BAKER: Yes, we will.

MR. THOMPSON:k All right. Then we have the St. Clair
charge, the Belle River costing charge totalling $600,000,
and the property taxes and 0&M, you say, at a million-
three; is that right?

MR. BAKER: That's right.

MR. THOMPSON: Those are the total costs, as I make
it, or am I missing something?

MR. BAKER: No. I think you've got it.

MR. THOMPSON: So if I multiply those revenues by 12
and subtract those costs, do I get a negative number?

MR. BAKER: Again, I think you are trying to do a
calculation on an annual basis. When we look at a project
or a capital investment, we are looking at the return over
the life of that asset. So in this case, we do our
economics over a 40-year life.

So, you know, while you may have a return of X in year
1 of a project, that doesn't mean that you are going to
have that same return for the life of the -- for the 40-
vear life of the asset.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. So just stopping -- the way

I have done it 1s the way the Board would traditionally do
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these.

MR. BAKER: On an annual basis, that's right.

MR. THOMPSON: Right. Would you agree with me, when
you do it that way, the return is certainly not negative?

MR. BAKER: I would agree with you, and we obviously
wouldn't expect it to be. If a project has a negative
return in year 1, we wouldn't be here talking about it.

MR. THOMPSON: Right. But what gives it, then, the
negative return in the calculation that you have done is
you are taking it out 40 years and you're making some
assumptions at the end of five, seven and ten about these
existing contracts, are you?

MR. BAKER: I don't think we are making any
assumption.

We had understood the gquestion to be: Based on the
contracts and the precedent agreements that we have, what's
the return on the project? So we have not made any
assumptions post the determination of those contracts.

MR. THOMPSON: So when you take it out 40 years, what
does that answer mean? That they're in effect not renewed?

MR. BAKER: That's right.

MR. THOMPSON: So the calculation that's producing a
negative assumes three contracts for five years end at five
years?

MR. BAKER: That's right.

MR. THOMPSON: And the one at seven years ends at
seven years, and the one at ten years ends at ten years?

MR. BAKER: That's right.
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MR. THOMPSON: Right. Could you redo the calculation,
please, assuming that they all continue for 40 years, by
way of undertaking?

MS. WONG: Mr. Thompson, our concern here is that we
really don't know what the relevance of all of this is.
The proposal is an at-risk pipeline where it is at
negotiated rates. That was the proposal that the Board
looked at in the St. Clair application. That was the
proposal that the Board found had benefits to the system.

We could do all kinds of assumptions here that have no
foundation. At the moment, all that is firm are the five
contracts with those dates.

MR. KAISER: Doesn't it go to the reasonableness of
the cap-?

MR. BAKER: I would say, on that, that the
reasonableness of the cap, when we looked at the cap for
the tariff, it was, you know, as Mr. Isherwood described.
It was trying to be able to have a tariff that was wide
enough that would allow us to capture fluctuations in the
market, not based on, you know, a traditional cost of
service methodology in terms of what the upper limit of
your toll would be.

MR. KAISER: Thank you.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, I submit it is arguably relevant
to the reasonableness of the cap. Could you give us the
undertaking so we can see the number, please?

MS. WONG: No. That is an objection. We would put

ourselves in the hands of the Board. Our view is it is not
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relevant for the reasons I stated, that all we have at the
moment are the five contracts that have been entered into,
and speculation as to what might happen in the future is
not relevant to an at-risk pipeline.

As far as the cap goes, the witness's answer 1is that
it is meant to capture market opportunities as they arise.
It has nothing to do with the return on equity over the
long term.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, I submit it is reasonable to the
-- where you set the limit on this cap, Mr. Chairman,
whether it is two times the tradition, or one-and-a-half
times the traditional level or something close to Vector.

I think -- I am in the Board's hands if it would be
helpful.

MR. KAISER: How is the cap set in the case of Vector
by the NEB; do you know?

MR. BAKER: My understanding is that the cap on Vector
was actually done through a negotiated settlement with the
shipper, so I am not sure whether the NEB formally
adjudicated that, or not.

But, again, I would go back, if it is helpful for the
Board, in Union's Cl rate schedule, which is our short-term
interruptible transportation, we do have -- again, subject
to check, I believe it is a $75 a gigajoule max rate on our
Cl tariff, and it is there for the exact same reason. Not
that we are expecting that that is going to be the rate by
which we are providing service every day, but to the extent

that there is a situation in the market that happens, we've
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got the flexibility within the toll to meet that market
need.

And in the case of Union, that goes, in terms of the
revenue stream, as part of our regulated operations.

MR. ISHERWOOD: I would just add to that, if I could,
on the TransCanada Pipeline side, their interruptible toll
starts at 120 percent of firm. So it is not -- Vector
sounds like it is a cap based on firm. TransCanada
actually starts -- the minimum price is 120 percent of
their firm toll, and I don't believe there is a cap. It
just runs from there. It is negotiated.

MR. KAISER: You indicated -- this is going back to
Mr. Thompson's interrogatory 1. It sort of bears on this.
I was going to come to it, but before we rule on this cap
issue, let me ask you.

Those were gquestions asking what you were going to do
with Michigan Public Service Commission regarding the
approvals to operate the Dawn Gateway Pipeline in Michigan,
as well as approval of the tariff.

And to paraphrase, you said, Well we haven't filed
anything yet, but we intend to apply for the same type of
negotiated rates with a cap, as we are in Ontario, and we
are hopeful that Michigan will grant us that.

How are you going to determine the cap in that filing,
or do you know?

MR. BAKER: I am not aware of exactly how we are
planning to file that application with the Michigan Public

Service Commission.
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MR. KAISER: So what's the purpose of the cap? You
would ordinarily think that the purpose of a cap was to
protect the consumer, i.e., the price couldn't go above
that amount, that there was some protection you get.

And in this interrogatory 5 of Mr. Thompson, you had
this graph that bounced around, and, as Mr. Isherwood
indicated in -- I forget if it was in January 2003 or
January 2004 -- it went up to $8.00 or whatever it was. It
just went nuts in one day.

Does that extreme represent the cap you have chosen?

MR. ISHERWOOD: Does that, sorry, in the extreme?

MR. KAISER: There is an extremely high differential
in the graph that you attached to your ultimate answer to
Interrogatory 5(f).

MR. ISHERWOOD: Our firm cap is a dollar and our
interruptible cap would be at two dollars. So I think the
dollar and two dollars would capture a lot of the
opportunity along that line. It wouldn't capture the
extreme. It looks like there is two or three days it
wouldn't capture.

MR. KATISER: Okay.

MR. BAKER: I think to answer your guestion, Mr.
Chairman, we didn't set it at the maximum that we have seen
historically.

MR. KAISER: So when you did set it at the rates you
have just described, you were thinking of what, that this
was a reasonable range?

MR. BAKER: That's right. Based on what we had seen
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historically.

MR. KATISER: Of price variances that one might see
over a long period of time-?

MR. BAKER: That's correct.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, there is the outstanding item of
the undertaking.

MR. KAISER: We will rule on that after lunch, Mr.
Thompson, is that satisfactory?

MR. THOMPSON: That's fine. I am just about done.
That's fine. Let's leave it.

MR. KAISER: Do you want to take a break now for
lunch? Do you have more-?

MR. THOMPSON: I thought that's what you were
signalling but...

MR. KAISER: I was.

MR. THOMPSON: That's fine.

MR. KAISER: We will come back in an hour.

--- Luncheon recess taken at 12:30 p.m.

--- Upon resuming at 1:37 p.m.

MR. KAISER: Please be seated.

Mr. Thompson-?

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think Ms.
Wong had a preliminary matter dealing with this document.

PRELIMINARY MATTERS:

MS. WONG: And I was wondering, sir, if you had a
ruling on the objection?

MR. KAISER: Yes, I do. We have decided, Mr.

Thompson, not to order the production of that information
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at this time.

If there i1s an issue with respect to these caps, they
can be raised by individual complainants on the basis of
actual facts at the proper time as opposed to worrying
about forecasting some proper cap at this point.

MS. WONG: Thank you, sir.

Before the break, there had been an undertaking given
regarding the Vector letter of October 16, 2009 --

MR. KAISER: Yes.

MS. WONG: -- and Vector rates. I have provided to
Ms. -- to Board Staff a copy of the letter and some toll
schedules, and I was going to ask Mr. Isherwood just to
make some brief comments on the material. So perhaps we
could mark that as the next exhibit.

MR. KAISER: Yes, we will. What number is this?

MS. WONG: I think it is K1.13.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: That's right.

EXHIBIT NO. K1.13: LETTER DATED OCTOBER 16, 2009 FROM

VECTOR.

MR. ISHERWOOD: The handout actually is three pieces.
It is a letter that Vector Pipelines sent to the National
Energy Board on October 16th, and then what we also
attached is Vector's -- off their website, their current
interruptible toll from the Canadian border to Dawn, and
also their US toll, as well, is I believe the third page.

When Vector first negotiated a settlement with their
shippers, prior to the pipeline being built, they had an

obligation to come back to the NEB annually with a revised
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Those documents, comprising in combination the tariff,
include the Dawn Gateway Pipeline Limited Partnership
general terms and conditions. That is segment 1. Segment
2 is the toll schedule for firm transportation service.

Segment 3 is the statement of tolls, firm
transportation service tolls. That is found at page 26
under schedule 3.

The fourth segment is the interruptible transportation
agreement. It starts at page 27 under this schedule.

And the fifth segment is the interruptible
transportation service schedule, and the sixth, if I
haven't missed one, is the interruptible transportation
service tolls.

I may have missed one here. Let me just check.

Yes. The first one are the general terms and
conditions. The second is the firm transportation
agreement. The third is the firm transportation toll
schedule. I believe I missed that. The fourth is the
statement of tolls for firm transportation service.

Fifth is the transportation service agreement. Sixth
is the transportation toll schedule, and the seventh is the
statement of tolls for interruptible transportation
service.

We support and we have no -- we have no specific
concerns with the components of the proposed tariff, except
the tolls. Except the tolls.

So the submissions I am making to you relate to the

statement of tolls for firm transportation service at page
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26 and the statement of tolls found at page 35, under
schedule 3.

The question that we ask you to consider and determine
is whether the tolls specified in these schedules for firm
and interruptible service, specify -- use caps that are
reasonable in the context of NEB group 2 regulation. That
is the point that I will be addressing now.

We question the reasonableness of these caps being
proposed for both firm service and interruptible service.

The firm caps being proposed are, first of all, a
demand charge cap of US $30 per decatherm per month. And
the usage rate and overrun charge is the equivalent of that
on a daily basis. It is a one dollar per US -- one US
dollar per day per -- one US dollar per decatherm per day.

The interruptible proposed caps do not involve a
demand charge, but the usage rate and the authorized
overrun rate are two US dollars per decatherm per day which
is essentially 200 percent of the usage and authorized
overrun rates for firm service.

Our analysis of the question, are these caps
reasonable, in the context of NEB group 2 equivalents
regulation starts with a submission that NEB group 2
regulation is cost of service-based and not value of
service based. This, we submit, is evident from the
guidelines that I had referred to previously and again, at
page 2, as I mentioned, the guidelines require the filing
of financial statements showing revenues and costs

associated with the regulated pipeline. Stopping there.
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That i1s a feature of cost of service regulation, not value
of service.

The guidelines do not require the production of
information showing the spreads between commodity prices at
two different points. The guidelines do require group 2
companies to include in their tariffs an explanatory note,
the note reads as follows:

"The tolls of the company are regulated on a
complaint basis. The company is required to make
copies of tariffs and supporting financial
information readily available to interested
persons. Persons who cannot resolve traffic and
tariff issues with the company may file a
complaint with the Board and in the absence of a
complaint the company does not normally undertake
a detailed examination of the company's tolls."

The guidelines go on and say, however, that it is the
responsibility of a group 2 company to provide its shippers
and interested parties with sufficient information to
enable them to determine whether a complaint is warranted
and, importantly, upon receipt of the complaint, the Board
can examine the toll, make a toll interim, and can request
additional information relating to -- information of the
type that is required of group 1 companies specified in
section P of the Board's filing manual.

Section P and Guide P of the Board's filing manual
relates to cost of service filings by group 1 pipelines.

So the guideline, in our submission, indicates, we
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submit fairly convincingly, that the regulation -- NEB
group 2 regulation is light-handed, but linked to cost of
service analysis, if necessary.

That submission, I submit, is reinforced when you
consider the Vector tariff that was discussed at some
length yesterday. The document in evidence is Exhibit
K1.13.

The Board's decision in Vector, I will just give you
the reference. It is GH-5-98. It is a March 1999 decision
of the National Energy Board.

When you read that decision, the tolls and tariffs
part of it, you will see what I understood Mr. Baker to
acknowledge yesterday, that the negotiated tolls in that
case with shippers were essentially cost of service tolls.

Then the toll schedules do have some variances
permitted, but in reference to the cost of service base.

I submit you can see that in the attachments to
Exhibit K1.13, where you have, in the charges for long-term
transportation service tolls, caps that are considerably
below what Dawn Gateway is proposing and I submit,
obviously derived from some cost of service base. And I
submit the reasons for decision support that.

But what Vector is permitted to do in the case of
shorter terms is to negotiate tolls capped at
certain percentage levels over and above those cost-based
charges.

So for ten-year firm transportation service or less,

the cap goes up to 115 percent. And - sorry, for ten
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yvears, it is 115 percent and that is something higher than
the 15-year toll.

Then for transportation service for less than ten
years, 1t can be up to 300 percent of the cost-based toll.
So that gives you some idea of how far the NEB is going to
go under group 2 regulation, with long-term transportation
that is in the 1 to 10- year range, which is what we're
dealing with with Dawn Gateway.

The five precedent agreements. Three are for five
years. One is for seven. And one is for ten.

Similarly, when you look at interruptible service, it
is capped in relation to the 1l5-year cost-based toll at
300 percent above that cap.

So it is in that context that we, then, look at the
level of caps that Dawn Gateway is proposing in relation to
an estimate of what the cost-based number would look like.
And that, then, brings me to this confidential document
that forms part of my argument. I don't know if we need to
give it a number. Perhaps we should, just for --

MS. DJURDJEVIC: I think we should. That will be
X2.1.

EXHIBIT NO. X2.1: CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT.

MR. THOMPSON: The calculations here are based on the
examination -- my examination of the witness panel
yesterday.

What I am attempting to do is look at the revenues
that are under these confidential precedent agreements,

which you have in your possession. There are five of them.
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They each specify a monthly reservation charge, and
the witnesses agreed that if you take the total of those
monthly reservation charges, multiply them by 12, you will
get the total revenues to be realized by Dawn Gateway under
those precedent agreements for --

MR. KAISER: Mr. Thompson, do we need to go off the
airv

MR. THOMPSON: I don't think so. I am not going to
mention any numbers. I am just going to point you to them.

MR. KAISER: All right. I understand.

MR. THOMPSON: I am going to try and not get myself
into the penalty box here. I am just trying to explain to
you where these numbers come from.

So what I have tried to calculate here is the
situation at 78 percent utilization, because these five
precedent agreements use up 78 percent of the capacity.

So the first number that you see on my exhibit comes
from those confidential documents. Then in terms of the
costs - and I am doing a utility-type calculation here that
Mr. Baker and I discussed - we have the St. Clair crossing
and Belle River costs. That number is on the record of
600,000. That is in CME No. 5.

We have 0&M and property taxes. This is the number,
again, from the record in CME 5 of $1,300,000. We question
the level of that amount, but for the purposes of this
analysis we have accepted it.

The next number I put in is depreciation. When I

discussed this with Mr. Baker, I suggested 4 percent, but
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when he came back and was describing how Dawn Gateway did
its internal calculations, he used a 40-year time Horizon.
So I have used 2.5 percent.

MR. THOMPSON: That number is not in the record and is
derived from confidential information, which I will refer
to in a moment.

The return on equity percentage that I have used is
9.75. That comes from your recent cost of capital report.
I have used taxes at 30 percent, and I have used debt costs
at 6 percent, and we have used a 60 percent debt/40 percent
equity ratio.

Again, these numbers, return on equity, taxes and debt
costs, derive from numbers, some of which are in the
record, but the total is not.

Just on that point, if you would drop down to the
bottom, you will see I've got here DGLP capital costs, and
based on the discussion we had with the witnesses
yvesterday, they consist of the NBV of the St. Clair line at
about 5 million that's on the record, the $2.5 million of
compensation that Dawn Gateway is contributing to Union's
obligations to its shareholders -- sorry, to its ratepayers
as a result of your decision in the 0411 case.

The next item I have characterized "bonus to Union".
That's the success fee that Mr. Baker was talking about.
Then the last item, Bickford to Dawn, that is a
confidential number that derives from the documents
provided by Union in the course of the calculation exercise

that followed your decision in the 0411 case.
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So that gives the total estimated capital costs of the
Dawn Gateway line based on the evidence. That number is
confidential.

Then on the left-hand side, I have subdivided that
between equity at 40 percent and debt at 60 percent, and it
is those numbers to which the percentages up above have
been applied to produce my calculation of return on equity,
taxes and debt costs.

So what you see from this analysis is that at
78 percent occupancy, there's a considerable amount that is
in excess of what I call a utility return. You will see
that amount as the third number down the column.

What I then do is attempt to calculate what that
excess does in terms of the equity return. So there,
again, I take taxes on the excess at 30 percent and I get
after-tax -- an after-tax excess amount, which is then
added to the utility return amount above, and it produces
a percentage that Dawn Gateway will earn, based on these
contracts in place, that is almost two times the utility
return.

So what does that mean? It means the numbers
reflected in these confidential contracts are already
producing, at 78 percent occupancy, 200 percent, roughly,
of more than the cost-based charge. And a ceiling -- if
you use the NEB guideline, a ceiling of 300 percent above
this base would be less than the 15 cents amount that Mr.
Isherwood acknowledges is the traditional upper limit of

the range of long-term commodity price differentials
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between Michigan and Dawn.

On the second page of this document, essentially what
I asked: What would this look like if there is 100 percent
utilization, assuming that the 80,000 decatherms per day is
sold at the lowest price paid by the precedent agreement
shippers?

And so I have gone through that calculation in the
same manner as I did the previous one. You see there that
if they sell out in November of 2010 when they are
proposing another open season in 2010, if they sell out in
2010 at around the same prices that they're getting now,
then the amount that Dawn Gateway will realize at these
prices increases to something in the order of about three
times the utility return, 300 percent.

When you then overlay on that what would 15 cents as a
cap -- what potential would that provide, it allows -- my
calculations, it gives them another 150 percent to
200 percent head room above either the 200 -- either the
78 percent utilization, two times equity return, or the
100 percent, three times equity return.

So that analysis, in my respectful submission, prompts
us to submit that the $30.00 US per day per decatherm
demand charge is about six times -- more than six times too
high.

It should be in the order of $4.50 US dollars per
decatherm per day. And the same thing with the usage
charge and the unauthorized overrun charge. That is way

too high.
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We submit that it should be 15 cents and not the
dollar.

And that allows this company an opportunity to earn
some three-times a utility return. More than three times.
Sorry. It allows them to earn 4.5 to 5 times utility
return at that level.

That, I submit, is generous in the context of the
NEB's regulation of Vector where the caps are set at
300 percent.

So we urge you to examine these caps in the context of
this analysis and we invite you to conclude that they are
too high. We are not dealing here, in my submission where
we are dealing with long-term storage. One needs to be
careful before you commoditize long-term storage to the
degree that the company is proposing.

We would submit that the lower caps we're proposing do
not prejudice the company in terms of the contracts that it
has entered into, nor is it likely to prejudice them in the
effort to sell the rest under long-term contracts, because
the witnesses acknowledged for long-term, purchasers are
going to look at the traditional spread, 10 to 15 cents.

We do acknowledge that there is a tension between what
should the caps be and what information is available to
prospective purchasers, i1f, for example, the contracts, the
pricing in the contracts were available to someone
considering acquiring service from Dawn Gateway, we would
probably have less concern about the caps because they

would know the prices being paid.
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We still think the caps are too high, but the more
information that is available on a contract-specific basis
in a timely fashion to market participants, then the
concern about the level of caps tends to decline.

Based on what the company's proposing in this case, we
submit the Board should be cautious about establishing the
caps. And perhaps revisit the situation after the open-
season in November, assuming they get this thing up and
running because if it is all sold out under long-term, I
think the caps that we are suggesting will be just fine.

So that is our submission. The group 2 egquivalents
concept, in our submission, calls for some linkage of caps
to cost of service and the linkage that we are suggesting
of $4.50 for the demand charge, 15 cents for the commodity
charge, and on the interruptible we would envisage two
times the usage charge and authorized overrun charge for
firm would be -- should be sufficient. So that would be 30
cenfs.

We urge you to consider those caps as reasonable and,
once again, revisit the situation if everything doesn't
sell out on a long-term basis in November of 2010.

MR. KAISER: Mr. Thompson, are the caps in Vector, was
that essentially a settlement between the parties? Or was
there an NEB decision on the proper amount of the cap?

MR. THOMPSON: It was a settlement with the parties,
as I understand it, sir, based on my reading of the
decision. I wasn't there.

MR. KAISER: Is that the only case that we are aware
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of, where the caps? Or are there other cap amounts
floating around outside of the Vector ones?

MR. THOMPSON: I think Mr. Baker mentioned some and I
should know them but there are caps in TransCanada's
situation for interruptible, as I recall it. Maybe some
other. Well maybe Mr. Isherwood can help us.

MR. KAISER: What I am really asking, are there any
NEB decisions as opposed to settlements on the
reasonableness of cap amounts?

MR. THOMPSON: I think there are. But I would have to
undertake to find those for you.

At the NEB, there have been debates as to the pricing
of short-term services and interruptible services and
various combinations, short-term firm services.

My recollection is that some of those services have
been capped at a percentage that is above their regulated
FT service toll.

MR. KAISER: You said that your concern with cap
levels goes down as the amount of information goes up, or
paraphrasing what you said?

MR. THOMPSON: Right.

MR. KAISER: The fact, unlike the NEB, as I understand
it, in this case there is going to be an application of
STAR and then some other concessions that they made.

Is the information available in this case greater
than, in your view, than would exist under the NEB regime?

MR. THOMPSON: I couldn't answer that with any degree

of certainty.
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I think the answer is "yes" but I don't think the
pricing information under STAR is -- there's not enough of
it to be sufficiently helpful.

The other point that I guess I have some concern about
is that the regulator does have an obligation to prevent a
regulated transportation utility from earning excessive
returns or super- normal returns so that is another
consideration, I submit, that bears on what is the
appropriate level of caps.

MR. KAISER: Well, that responsibility -- I mean you
say we have a responsibility to make sure that these aren't
excessive returns. I guess you would say, have said, they
are excessive returns. But is not the theory here that
this is a totally at risk pipeline? The shareholders is at
risk. The ratepayer is not at risk. And also that there
has been -- nobody has contested this, that these customers
are big boys, they know what they're doing, and they have
alternatives.

So are we trying to create some fudge in the middle
here. Either this is essentially a competitive market not
requiring us to make a judgment about returns are excessive
or not. I mean what's the theory for even having caps at
allz

MR. THOMPSON: Well, it is --

MR. KAISER: Outside of the NEB does that.

MR. THOMPSON: It is a regulated pipeline and it is
not a fully competitive market, in my submission.

If you start treating transportation as a commodity,
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then utilities are going to make a killing and that, in my
submission -- there is not enough transportation. The fact
that they sold out 78 percent before they even got up and
running and that Vector is fully subscribed, to me, should
prompt the Board to be very cautious before it treats Dawn
Gateway as, 1in effect, a commodity.

The other point there that I would urge you to
consider are these notice of proposed rule-making by FERC.
As I understand it, the FERC is introducing more pricing
information requirements -- the rule is proposing to
introduce that more pricing information be available, which
transmits to me a concern that the -- too much light-handed
regulation of transportation is leading to some
difficulties.

I hope that is responsive to your question, but...

MR. KAISER: The only other question I have, and I may
have the answer to my question, but we had said, when we
were ruling on your request for further information to
determine the reasonableness of the caps --

MR. THOMPSON: Right.

MR. KAISER: -- that, well, that can be dealt with on
a case-by-case basis as part of the complaint process, but
I suppose your answer would be, Well, once you have set the
caps, we have set the caps. I mean, you could revisit the
caps, but it comes back to the same question.

Somebody could come along six months from now and say,
Look at these prices and look at the rate of return. It is

six times the utility rate of return. The caps are
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So I guess you would say the cap issue is -- I mean,
guess I am saying: Is that, in your view, justification
for us to say, Well, there may be an issue on these caps,
but these customers can come forward and they can make the
argument on the basis of actual facts at the time that the
caps are unreasonable? We don't have to get into that now?

MR. THOMPSON: Well, that is really saying no caps.

MR. KAISER: Right.

MR. THOMPSON: And the company is proposing caps and
we are questioning whether their caps are appropriate.

Again, I would caution you that you may end up there,
but I would urge you to go there slowly to see how it plays
out.

As I say, 1f they're sold out in November, then there
is not a problem for anybody, but the caps issue --
somebody 1s going to get victimized, in my submission, if
the caps are not examined closely by this Board, and I
therefore urge you to set them at a reasonable level.

MR. KAISER: The victims being the people who might
buy this capacity that is left over?

MR. THOMPSON: That's right, and then discover later,
Gee, somebody else got 50,000 decatherms at half of What I
paid. And to me that would -- is not -- these tolls have
to be just and reasonable.

MR. KAISER: Isn't the answer to that that they
bellied up to the bar early and made long-term commitments

and allowed the company to build the pipe, as opposed to
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somebody that comes down later and just want a little bit
who is going to pay more-?

MR. THOMPSON: No. My understanding is that they
agreed to these prices because they fall within this range.

If you accept that evidence of Mr. Isherwood that the
range is ten to 15 cents, then the upper end of their
negotiating ability should be that number, in my view.

It's not without its difficulties, I concede.

There 1s one other point that I wanted to -- have I
finished responding to you, sir?

MR. KAISER: Yes.

MR. THOMPSON: And that is other matters that are not
part of the approvals sought in this case, and that, in my
submission, pertains to the discussion that was had on the
record about the outstanding compensation issue.

I submit that that issue should not have a bearing on
the Dawn Gateway decision, because the economics for Dawn
Gateway will not change with your decision on compensation.

Everything over 2.5 million is for Union's account,
based on the arrangements Dawn Gateway has made with Union,
and the debate over whether the cost to Union is between
1.5 million and 5.5 million over what Dawn Gateway has
contributed is apparently going to be brought forward into
the earnings sharing proposal that Union will make later
this year.

As I understand it, whatever Union has to pay over the
2.5 million Union will be seeking to deduct in its

calculation of earnings over the threshold that is to be
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shared with ratepayers.

So I guess I would conclude with the Lord giveth and
the Lord taketh away, but, fortunately, you folks and not
Union will speak for the almighty when that issue comes
forward.

But I say that is not something that should bear on
your decision in this case.

And unless there are any further submissions, those
are my submissions on -- any further questions, those are
my submissions on behalf of CME.

MR. KAISER: Thank you.

MS. CHAPLIN: Mr. Thompson, I believe you would have
us use this Vector statement of tolls as a bit of a model
or framework for how we might analyze the Dawn Gateway
proposal. I am just wondering how comparable they are
since, in the case of Dawn Gateway, there isn't a suite of
contracts for 15 years.

I am just wondering if that has any bearing on it, in
terms of you've done an analysis which shows a level of
return and you have characterized it in a particular way.
But I am just wondering if that analysis fully reflects the
fact that those contracts -- I mean, there is one ten-year
contract and one seven-year contract, but three five-year
contracts, if I am correct in my...

So there is not that same kind of longevity as there
would be if all of the contracts were 15 years.

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, I agree. So what I was focussing

on was the Vector tariff, firm transportation service tolls
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for a term of less than ten years, where the cap is set at
well above the cost-based toll, but it is 300 percent.

What my analysis shows is that a cap at 15 cents would
provide a 500 percent increase above a cost-based toll at
100 percent occupancy and about 450, I think it is --
sorry, 350 at 78 percent occupancy.

So I was trying to suggest that in the context of that
aspect of Vector's toll, this proposal for 15 cents or 450
was, 1f anything, more generous than what the NEB would
allow.

MS. CHAPLIN: Okay.

With respect to the comments you made about the
concern about shippers being potentially victimized by the
extent of these caps, can you help me, again, with how that
would happen?

I mean, my perception is that given the long-term
trend is around the 10 to 15 cents, why would a shipper
feel any compulsion to contract at more than what the
service is worth?

MR. THOMPSON: Well, tolls on a -- I will try to
answer it this way. Tolls on a regulated transporter are
supposed to be just and reasonable, and under the NEB it is
similar -- the wording is similar prices for the similar
service or same prices for the same service.

So if someone contracts for -- say they have head room
of $30 dollars, US dollars, per decatherm per day, someone,
when the situation is tight, could sign up for something

well in excess of what a ten-year shipper is paying now.
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It could sign up for ten years.

Those two tolls would be discriminatory, in my
respectful submission, and that party would have a right to
complain. They may buy it because they are desperate, but
that doesn't relieve the obligation of regulating these
toils so that they remain non-discriminatory.

It would be the same thing with a residential. You
could say, Well, he could pay ten times as much. So what?

You know, he's done it as a -- I am not talking about

transportation, but that concern --

MS. CHAPLIN: Your view is that faced with short-term
market situation which the price might be unusually high, a
shipper might feel compelled to sign a long-term contract
that was reflective of those short-term market
circumstances?

MR. THOMPSON: Well, if there is no long-term space
available, they may have to buy a series of short -- it
comes back to pipeline capacity for transmission is
regulated.

This 1s not unregulated storage. That's the way this
company likes to characterize it. It is just an adjunct of
our unregulated storage business.

It is not. It is pipeline transmission. They are
selling to five shippers, and there may be more than five
shippers.

If your question is should short term prices be
allowed to go higher, I think my answer would be yes,

probably yes. But then you should have a separate subset
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for short-term caps, like what is in the Cl. But for long-
term service, I submit you should be linked to cost of
service in some definable basis.

MS. CHAPLIN: Okay, thank vyou.

MR. KAISER: We were referred to the Union case in
argument.

MR. THOMPSON: Right.

MR. KAISER: Were you involved in that?

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, I was.

MR. KAISER: And they were asking that the cap be
increased and you and your panelists agreed. What was the
rationale there?

MR. THOMPSON: Well, again, I emphasize it is for
short term and interruptible.

MR. KAISER: Yes.

MR. THOMPSON: One year or less. I don't recall any
debate on this, quite frankly, but --

MR. KAISER: I am not familiar with the case at all.
Is there any learning in the analysis or the agreement or
the discussion you had with respect to that issue, where I
forget, I guess it was five years ago, you agreed to -- a
cap was increased substantially.

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, it was. Now, is this the IRM
case? Or the one before it?

MS. WONG: It is the 2007 rates case.

MR. THOMPSON: 1It’s the base rate case.

MS. WONG: That's my understanding.

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, right. No, I can't offer you any
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learning as obviously we didn't learn very much when we
went along with this.

But you were dealing with short term and the analogy
there was market-based. No doubt about that. But here we
are talking, in my submission, we are talking abou<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>